
 

 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 
Meeting 
 

Employment in Hampshire County Council Committee 
 

Date and Time Thursday, 7th July, 2022 at 10.00 am 
  
Place Chute Room, EII Court, The Castle, Winchester 
  
Enquiries to members.services@hants.gov.uk 
  
Carolyn Williamson FCPFA 
Chief Executive 
The Castle, Winchester SO23 8UJ 
 
FILMING AND BROADCAST NOTIFICATION 
This meeting may be recorded and broadcast live on the County Council’s website and 
available for repeat viewing, it may also be recorded and filmed by the press and 
public. Filming or recording is only permitted in the meeting room whilst the meeting is 
taking place so must stop when the meeting is either adjourned or closed.  Filming is 
not permitted elsewhere in the building at any time. Please see the Filming Protocol 
available on the County Council’s website. 

 
AGENDA 

  
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
 To receive any apologies for absence received. 

  
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
 All Members who believe they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in 

any matter to be considered at the meeting must declare that interest 
and, having regard to Part 3 Paragraph 1.5 of the County Council's 
Members’ Code of Conduct, leave the meeting while the matter is 
discussed, save for exercising any right to speak in accordance with 
Paragraph 1.6 of the Code. Furthermore all Members with a Personal 
Interest in a matter being considered at the  meeting should consider, 
having regard to Part 5, Paragraph 4 of the Code, whether such interest 
should be declared, and having regard to Part 5, Paragraph 5 of the 
Code, consider whether it is appropriate to leave the meeting while the 
matter is discussed, save for exercising any right to speak in accordance 
with the Code. 
  

3. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  (Pages 3 - 6) 
 
 To confirm the minutes of the previous meeting (18 March 2022).  

  

Public Document Pack



4. DEPUTATIONS   
 
 To receive any deputations notified under Standing Order 12. 

  
5. CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS   
 
 To receive any announcements the Chairman may wish to make. 

  
6. ANNUAL WORKFORCE REPORT 2021 - 2022  (Pages 7 - 72) 
 
 To review the Annual Workforce Report for 2021 to 2022. 

  
7. CONNECT2HAMPSHIRE - UPDATE ON HAMPSHIRE'S TEMPORARY 

STAFFING AGENCY  (Pages 73 - 82) 
 
 To receive an update on the County Councils joint venture agency, 

Hampshire & Kent Commercial Services LLP (trading as 
Connect2Hampshire). 
  

8. PAY, POLICY AND LEGISLATION UPDATE  (Pages 83 - 118) 
 
 To receive an update on the National Pay Award, proposed employment 

related legislative changes and an update on the Deputy Chief Executive 
arrangements. 
 

 
 
 
ABOUT THIS AGENDA: 
On request, this agenda can be provided in alternative versions (such as 
large print, Braille or audio) and in alternative languages. 
 
ABOUT THIS MEETING: 
The press and public are welcome to attend the public sessions of the 
meeting. If you have any particular requirements, for example if you require 
wheelchair access, please contact members.services@hants.gov.uk for 
assistance. 
 
 
County Councillors attending as appointed members of this Committee or by 
virtue of Standing Order 18.5; or with the concurrence of the Chairman in 
connection with their duties as members of the Council or as a local County 
Councillor qualify for travelling expenses.

mailto:members.services@hants.gov.uk


1 

AT A MEETING of the Employment in Hampshire County Council Committee of 
HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL held at the castle, Winchester on Friday, 18th 

March, 2022 
 

Chairman: 
* Councillor Stephen Reid 

 
* Councillor Gary Hughes 
a  Councillor Adrian Collett 
* Councillor Steve Forster 
* Councillor Keith House 
* Councillor Zoe Huggins 
* Councillor Stephen Parker 
 

* Councillor Stephen Philpott 
   
   
   
   
 

*Present 
  
Also present with the agreement of the Chairman: Councillor Arun Mummalaneni 
(Conservative Deputy Member) 

  
24.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
Apologies were received from Cllr Collett.  
  

25.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
All Members who believe they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any 
matter to be considered at the meeting must declare that interest and, having 
regard to Part 3 Paragraph 1.5 of the County Council's Members' Code of 
Conduct, leave the meeting while the matter is discussed, save for exercising 
any right to speak in accordance with Paragraph 1.6 of the Code. Furthermore 
all Members with a Personal Interest in a matter being considered at the meeting 
should consider, having regard to Part 5, Paragraph 4 of the Code, whether such 
interest should be declared, and having regard to Part 5, Paragraph 5 of the 
Code, consider whether it is appropriate to leave the meeting while the matter is 
discussed, save for exercising any right to speak in accordance with the Code. 
  

26.   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
The minutes of the last meeting were reviewed and agreed. 
  

27.   DEPUTATIONS  
 
No deputations were received at this meeting.  
  

28.   CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 
The Chairman had no announcements on this occasion.  
 
  

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



2 

29.   PAY, POLICY AND LEGISLATION UPDATE  
 
The Employment in Hampshire County Council (EHCC) Committee considered a 
report of the Director of Human Resources, Organisational Development and 
Communications & Engagement, providing an update on the National Pay 
Award, the Mandatory Vaccinations policy and potential employment related 
legislative changes. 
  
It was noted that agreement had been reached on the National Pay Award and 
the increase would be paid to staff on Employment in Hampshire County Council 
Terms and Conditions at the end of March 2022 backdated to April 2021.  
  
It was discussed that around 120 staff were employed on Soulbury terms and 
conditions and due to the complexity involved in applying the pay increase for 
these staff, this would be paid at the end of April. Members commented that 
those staff would be disadvantaged as the National Insurance rise was due to 
come in from April and therefore would reduce the value of the backdated sum 
compared to if it was paid in March.  
  
Officers explained that it was usual practice to take two months to apply the pay 
increase, to allow time for checking. It had been agreed to expedite the process 
to enable the majority of staff to be paid in March, but it would introduce too 
much risk to attempt to do so for the Soulbury staff as well. Members requested 
that consideration be given to making an extra payment to those staff to cover 
the difference, so that they were not disadvantaged financially by the pay award 
being applied later. It was requested that officers report back on the precise cost 
impact for those staff.  
  
It was discussed that it was unhelpful that it had taken all year for the pay award 
to be agreed, and that negotiations for the following year were likely to be difficult 
due to the anticipated cost of living pressures.  
  
It was noted that the Hampshire County Council mandatory vaccination policy 
would be revoked in line with government revoking the legal requirement.  
  
RESOLVED: 
  

1.    That EHCC note that the national pay award has been agreed. The EHCC 
pay award will now be implemented and backdated to 1 April 2021.  
  

2.    That EHCC request Officers investigate the options to calculate the 
difference for Soulbury Staff being paid in April instead of March and 
make an additional payment to those staff to cover the difference. That 
Officers report back to EHCC the outcome of these considerations. 

  
3.    That EHCC note that regulations are in place to extend the requirement to 

be fully vaccinated against Covid-19 to CQC regulated activity on 1 April 
2022. However, EHCC should note that the government have now 
announced, following a national consultation, that they will remove the 
requirement for Mandatory Vaccinations in totality with effect from 15 

Page 4



3 

March and EHCC are asked to note that the Council will likewise revoke 
its own policy once government has revoked the legislation. 

  
4.    That EHCC note the updates on government consultations and potential 

employment legislation changes. 
  

30.   ENHANCED VOLUNTARY REDUNDANCY (EVR2) UPDATE  
 
The Employment in Hampshire County Council (EHCC) Committee considered a 
report of the Director of Human Resources, Organisational Development and 
Communications & Engagement, seeking an extension of the current enhanced 
voluntary redundancy offer (EVR2) until 31 March 2025. 
  
A Member requested that the data on staff leaving via redundancy be provided 
year by year and it was agreed to provide this to members.  
  
RESOLVED: 
  

1.    That EHCC agree the extension to the current EVR2 Scheme to 31 March 
2025, to support the Council in achieving its Savings Plan 2023 targets as 
detailed in the Medium-Term Financial Strategy, and anticipated Savings 
Plan 2025 targets.  
  

2.    That EHCC note that if any changes in Exit Payment legislation are 
implemented by government, this may require amendments to the EVR2 
scheme and this may affect the ability of the scheme to achieve its 
intended purpose. If the EVR2 scheme requires changes to ensure it 
remains legally compliant, it is recommended that EHCC delegate the 
ability to make these changes to the Director of Human Resources, 
Organisational Development and Communications & Engagement, in 
consultation with the Chairman of EHCC. If the resultant changes require 
significant change to the EVR2 scheme, then proposals would be brought 
back to EHCC. 

 
 
 
 
 
  
 Chairman,  

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

Report 

Committee: Employment in Hampshire County Council 

Date: 7 July 2022 

Title: Hampshire County Council - Annual Workforce Report 
2021 - 2022 

Report from: Director of Human Resources, Organisation 
Development, Communications and Engagement 

 
Contact name: Jac Broughton    Email:  jac.broughton@hants.gov.uk 

 
Purpose of this report 
 

1. This report introduces the Annual Workforce Report for 2021/22 for 
discussion at the Employment in Hampshire County Council committee 
(EHCC).       
 
Recommendation(s) 
 

2. EHCC are asked to: 
  Review the content of the Annual Workforce Report (Annex One)  
  Note the progress of the actions so far and next steps. 
 
Context 
 

3. The Annual Workforce Report 2021/22 can be seen in Annex One and 
provides a high-level overview of key workforce data (excluding schools) and 
the relevant trends to inform the Council’s workforce strategies and priorities.  
 
Executive Summary  
 

4. The report includes the normal suite of data and analysis relating to our 
people up to and including March 2022 and continues to be built around a 
typical ‘employee lifecycle’. 
 

5. Included in the report are updates on progress against last year’s actions 
which remain ongoing and our next areas of focus.  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



Conclusions 
 

6. The following conclusions are provided directly from Annex One following the 
analysis of the 2021/22 data:  
 

7. General: 
  Despite another extraordinary year for everyone, much of our 

organisational data has now reverted to being comparable to the years 
prior to the pandemic which may reinforce our sense of things ‘returning 
to normal’. 

  Headcount continues to reduce with great reductions at senior levels of 
the workforce (H+). 

  We have seen some increase in the numbers of people reporting to be 
disabled and those reporting to be from an ethnic minority. 

  Since last year, unsurprisingly, there has been an increase from 3% to 
4% in time lost for sickness absence with COVID-19 remaining our top 
sickness absence reason. 
 

8. Attract: 
  We have seen increased advertising activity linked to the fact that 

COVID-19 measures have lifted and in response to increased turnover. 

  Our adverts have generated less applications in this reporting year, likely 
linked to the low levels of unemployment in Hampshire and nationally. 

  We continue to be more attractive to the female labour market. 

  Our data suggests that ethnic minority applicants have been less 
successful through our selection process than those reporting as white.  
This is further emphasised at more senior levels in the organisation.  
 

9. Resource: 
  We are experiencing the same challenges in the labour market as other 

Hampshire and national employers. 

  We continue to fill our roles through a multitude of means such as directly 
employed staff, agency workers, casual workers and contractors. 

  Internal candidates are more likely to be hired than external candidates. 

  Agency costs have increased, back to pre-pandemic levels, with usage 
being predominantly in Social Care roles and IT.  C2H therefore remain 
key to our resourcing strategy. 

  Departmental workforce data tells us that the profile of recruitment ‘hot 
spots’ remains the same as in recent years, including, for example, care 
assistants, nurses, cooks, catering assistants and social workers.   

 

Page 8



10. Onboard: 
  Circa 2,000 external new starters have been onboarded into the 

organisation with induction remaining critical to the way we welcome and 
familiarise them with the business. 

11. Develop: 
  We have continued to invest in the development of our workforce with an 

excess of 80 employees joining TLP and in excess of 100 joining Firefly. 

  Inclusion and Wellbeing continue to be important themes for the 
development of our people. 

12. Reward and Recognise: 
  Formal and informal recognition remain critical to our people. 

  We continue to have a high-performing workforce with 99% of those 
directly employed achieving a successful or exceptional years 
performance. 

  17% of our workforce received an SRP payment, with awards distributed 
evenly across grade, age and Full Time/Part Time status.  More staff from 
an ethnic minority received an SRP than white colleagues. 

13. Progress and Perform: 
  Another sign of the high-performing nature of our workforce is reflected in 

the fact that we only saw 39 new performance management cases and 87 
misconduct cases raised in the reporting year. 
 

14. Retain and Exit: 
  Turnover has increased from 15% pre-pandemic to 17%, unsurprising 

since the CIPD note that 41% of employers are experiencing similar 
trends. 

  Circa 2,000 employees left our organisation, the majority for ‘voluntary 
reasons’ although still only 16% completed our Leaver Questionnaire 
meaning our understanding of ‘why’ remains relatively low. 

  Of our leavers, circa 450 left within their first 12 months and circa 140 
within 3 months. 

 

Next steps 

15. On-ongoing actions from our previous Annual Workforce Report can be seen 
in Appendix 2 of Annex One. We will continue to progress these actions 
through 2022/23. 

16. A range of actions have become evident through this report that will be built 
into our existing Inclusion, Diversity and Well-being Action Plan – particularly 
the following: 
 

Page 9



  We continue to explore different ways to analyse our workforce data to 
understand more about our people.   

  We will continue initiatives to increase the numbers and profiles of people 
from protected characteristics groups in senior roles. 

  We continue to look at ways to making flexible working more accessible. 

  We are raising awareness and sharing information about the diversity and 
cultures of colleagues and their lived experiences. 

  We want to better enable colleagues to report feelings of bullying, 
harassment, and discrimination in the workplace.  

  We are exploring the value of a 'conflict resolution' approach, modelled on 
a restorative justice and alternative dispute resolution process. 

  We continue to embed health and wellbeing in the organisation and 
supporting managers in this area. 

 
17. A further set of actions have emerged that will be progressed through our 

newly formed Strategic Workforce Planning Programme namely: 
 
  Improving our attraction rates for those under the age of 25 through the 

development of appropriate interventions aimed at the post 16 labour 
market. 

  Develop our attraction strategy and Employee Value Proposition with a 
view to gaining a competitive edge in the labour market. 

  Better understanding our turnover data, particularly any patterns of 
external and/or internal turnover. 

  Review and update our Leadership and Management Development 
framework in light of emerging needs and detailed gap analysis. 

  Further developing our insight about the future skills and workforce needs 
of our organisation. 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 10



 

REQUIRED CORPORATE AND LEGAL INFORMATION: 
 

Links to the Strategic Plan 
 
This proposal does not link to the Strategic Plan but potentially impacts the County 
Council’s workforce strategy. 
 

 
 
 

Other Significant Links 
Direct links to specific legislation or Government Directives   
Title 
Hampshire County Council’s: 
Workforce report 2017 - 18 
Workforce report 2018 – 19 
Workforce report 2019 – 20 
Workforce report 2020 – 21 

Date 
 
11 July 2018 
28 June 2019 
9 July 2020 
5 July 2021 

  
  

 
Section 100 D - Local Government Act 1972 - background documents 
  

Page 11



The following documents discuss facts or matters on which this report, or an 
important part of it, is based and have been relied upon to a material extent in 
the preparation of this report. (NB: the list excludes published works and any 
documents which disclose exempt or confidential information as defined in 
the Act.)  
 
 
Chartered Institute of Personnel Development (CIPD)  
CIPD Labour Market Outlook (Winter 2021-2022) 
https://www.cipd.co.uk/Images/labour-market-outlook-winter-2021-22_tcm18-
106241.pdf 
 
CIPD Health and wellbeing at work 2022: Survey report  
https://www.cipd.co.uk/Images/health-wellbeing-work-report-2022_tcm18-
108440.pdf 
 
Hampshire County Council Economic & Business Intelligence Service (EBIS) 
Hampshire Monthly Labour Market Update April 2022 
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/Economy/Hampshire-monthly-Labour-Market.pdf 
 
Inclusive Employers 
LGBTQ+ glossary of terms 
https://www.inclusiveemployers.co.uk/blog/lgbtq-glossary/ 
 
The benefits of religious diversity in the workplace 
https://www.inclusiveemployers.co.uk/blog/the-benefits-of-religious-diversity-in-the-
workplace/ 
 
Office for National Statistics (ONS)  
2018 sexual orientation UK statistics 
Sexual orientation, UK - Office for National Statistics (ons.gov.uk) 
 
2020 outcomes for disabled people statistics 
Outcomes for disabled people in the UK - Office for National Statistics (ons.gov.uk) 
 
2021 employment and unemployment statistics 
Employment in the UK - Office for National Statistics (ons.gov.uk) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
  

Page 12

https://www.cipd.co.uk/Images/labour-market-outlook-winter-2021-22_tcm18-106241.pdf
https://www.cipd.co.uk/Images/labour-market-outlook-winter-2021-22_tcm18-106241.pdf
https://www.cipd.co.uk/Images/health-wellbeing-work-report-2022_tcm18-108440.pdf
https://www.cipd.co.uk/Images/health-wellbeing-work-report-2022_tcm18-108440.pdf
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/Economy/Hampshire-monthly-Labour-Market.pdf
https://www.inclusiveemployers.co.uk/blog/lgbtq-glossary/
https://www.inclusiveemployers.co.uk/blog/the-benefits-of-religious-diversity-in-the-workplace/
https://www.inclusiveemployers.co.uk/blog/the-benefits-of-religious-diversity-in-the-workplace/
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/culturalidentity/sexuality/bulletins/sexualidentityuk/2018#:~:text=2.,or%20straight%20(Table%201).
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/healthandsocialcare/disability/articles/outcomesfordisabledpeopleintheuk/2020#:~:text=1.-,Main%20points,(year%20ending%20June%202020).
https://www.ons.gov.uk/employmentandlabourmarket/peopleinwork/employmentandemployeetypes/bulletins/employmentintheuk/december2021


 

EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT: 
 

1. Equality Duty 
The County Council has a duty under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 (‘the 
Act’) to have due regard in the exercise of its functions to the need to: 
- Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other conduct 

prohibited by or under the Act with regard to the protected characteristics as 
set out in section 4 of the Act (age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage 
and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and 
sexual orientation); 

- Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (age, disability, gender 
reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and 
sexual orientation) and those who do not share it; 

- Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (see above) and persons who 
do not share it.  

Due regard in this context involves having due regard in particular to: 
- The need to remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons sharing a 

relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic; 
- Take steps to meet the needs of persons sharing a relevant protected 

characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share it; 
- Encourage persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic to participate in 

public life or in any other activity in which participation by such persons is 
disproportionally low. 

2. Equalities Impact Assessment: 
 

Equality objectives are not considered to be adversely affected by proposals in 
this report.  The intent of this report is to enhance inclusion, diversity and 
equality at the County Council by publishing employee data relating to protected 
characteristics to help inform strategies and target initiatives to improve the 
workplace.  

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



hants.gov.uk

ANNUAL WORKFORCE 
REPORT 2021 TO 2022 

Page 15

https://www.hants.gov.uk/


Appendices .....................................................................................................................97

Next steps ........................................................................................................................95

Conclusions ....................................................................................................................89

Retain and exit ................................................................................................................83

Progress and perform ..................................................................................................73

Reward and recognise .................................................................................................67

Develop .............................................................................................................................55

Onboard .............................................................................................................................51

Resource ...........................................................................................................................43

Attract ................................................................................................................................35

Employee lifecycle .......................................................................................................33

Our people .......................................................................................................................15

Our departments ‘at a glance’ ...................................................................................9

Our organisation ..............................................................................................................5

Executive summary ........................................................................................................ 1

Contents

P
age 16



Workforce report   1

Executive  
summary

P
age 17



Workforce report   32   Hampshire County Council

Once again, the reporting year has been far from normal because of the global Coronavirus 
pandemic, however, with considerable pride we continue to note that the commitment of 
the entire workforce (directly employed, agency/casual workers and our wider network 
of supporters and volunteers) has enabled us to continue to manage services to a high 
standard across the board. 

In September 2021, we launched our first ‘organisation wide’ Inclusion Strategy. This 
reflects our belief that the more diverse and inclusive an organisation is, the more effective 
it can become. 

March 2021 Trend March 2022

Headcount 12,795 12,726

Full-time equivalent 9,985 9,940

Part-time headcount Male 717 704

Female 5,726 5,582

Female headcount 9,715 9,719

Under 25 headcount 514 466

Over 55 headcount 3,120 3,602

Declared ethnicity % 95% = 95%

% in senior roles (H+) Females 57% = 57%

Ethnic minorities 2.9% 3.3%

Gender pay gap % 15.8% 16%

Overall external turnover % (MAT) 11% 17%

An overview of changes 2021 to 2022

The data comparisons used in this report show either a trend from 2016 to 2022 to 
correspond with respective Transformation Programmes or are a specific point of time  
(i.e. 31 March 2022).

By exception, data for our directly employed workforce (page 16) dates to 2010 to show the 
trend since the start of the Government austerity; and Special Recognition Payment (SRP) 
data detailed in the Reward and recognise section relates to the 2021 calendar year. 

The following table reflects ‘at a glance’ changes to our workforce over the reporting  
period 2021 to 2022.

Facilitate all 
available talent 
to apply

Make sure 
our people 
are welcomed 
and inducted

Support our 
people to grow, 
develop and learn

Encourage our 
people to stay 
and learn from 

those who leave

Be an inclusive 
employer of choice

Have regular 
conversations 

about performance

Ensure the e�orts 
of our people are 

recognised

People
strategy

Attract

Resource

Onboard

Develop

Retain
and exit

Progress
and perform

Reward and
recognise

An employee life cycle

This Workforce Report for the period April 2021 to March 2022 provides a high-level 
overview of key workforce data (excluding schools) and the relevant trends to inform the 
County Council’s people strategies and priorities.

In addition, this report provides an overview of initiatives and strategies that have been put 
in place to support our people over the last year. The format follows an ‘employee lifecycle’ 
as reflected below: 

P
age 18

https://www.hants.gov.uk/aboutthecouncil/equality/inclusion-strategy


Workforce report   54   Hampshire County Council

Our organisation

P
age 19



Workforce report   76   Hampshire County Council

Like many organisations, this reporting year has seen the Council re-think working practices 
for office-based staff (circa 40% of our total Headcount). Performance analysis and Staff 
Engagement surveys during the past two reporting years have demonstrated that there 
were no negative impacts on organisational performance because of staff being asked to 
‘work from home where possible’ and whilst our staff recognise the need to come together 
for certain tasks and activities, they have welcomed the opportunity presented through 
greater flexibilities on a longer-term basis. Consequently, the Council launched a new 
Open Working Policy which enables hybrid working and sets out the key requirements and 
considerations that will enable both managers and staff to work from Council premises, 
home, or other suitable alternative locations. This policy recognises the benefits in 
providing modern, efficient, and productive ways of working to better support the needs  
of the Council and members of staff. 

That said, the majority (circa 60%) of our workforce continue to work in public facing roles 
across the County.

As always, it is important for us to recognise the contributions made by our staff across the 
last year and we would like to take this opportunity to thank our staff for their hard work and 
dedication to delivering and supporting the delivery of our services.

For the purposes of this report, and to support trend analysis, the functions of Corporate 
Operations, HR, OD, Communications and Engagement continue to be reported collectively 
under the heading ‘Corporate Services.’* 

Our extending organisation can be seen in Appendix one.

Human Resources, Organisational Development, Communications and Engagement  
Director: Jac Broughton

Economy, Transport and Environment  
Director: Stuart Jarvis

Community, Culture, Business and Services  
Director: Felicity Roe

Corporate Operations  
Director: Rob Carr

Children’s Services 
Director: Steve Crocker

Adults’ Health and Care  
Director: Graham Allen

Hampshire County Council is the democratic body that serves the residents and  
businesses of Hampshire. 

We remain a high-performing Council focussed on providing quality services and support 
to the people of Hampshire. We are proud of our people and acknowledge that our strong 
reputation is built on our exceptional staff, managers, and leaders.

This reporting period saw the appointment of Carolyn Williamson to the role of Chief 
Executive and Head of Paid Services in July 2021. 

The appointment of a new Chief Executive has seen some changes in the Corporate 
Management Team and the overall organisational model deployed across the Council, 
however, key service areas continue to be led by a director as follows:

*This includes the Law and Governance Function who report directly to the Chief Executive.

P
age 20



Workforce report   98   Hampshire County Council

Our departments  
‘at a glance’ 

P
age 21



Workforce report   1110   Hampshire County Council

The prolonged period of the pandemic has continued to impact CCBS services,  
particularly those which are front line and in very high demand. However, the department 
has been opportunistic in continuing to develop creative and agile delivery models. It has 
taken learning from its previous experiences, elicited greater digital utilisation and with 
appropriate strategies applied, it has enabled the department to maintain service delivery 
whilst working differently. This has required significant innovation, resilience, and flexibility 
from the workforce. Despite the challenges, there has been valuable learning and service 
improvement resulting from alternative ways of working and service innovation. 

During the last year, increased emphasis has been placed on staff engagement to better 
understand staff views on a broad range of topics such as inclusion, diversity, wellbeing, 
ways of working and staff’s lived experience. This insight has enabled co-creation of 
interventions, guidance and support for managers and staff as well as the introduction 
of ‘spotlight’ sessions focusing on topics relating to CCBS strategy, organisation and 
department priorities, in order for staff to share knowledge and aid learning across  
CCBS’s diverse services.

There continues to be an increasing recruitment and retention risk across the department 
and spanning multiple professions. Strategies aimed at increasing the potential pool of 
available talent, defining, and profiling our employee value proposition, radical overhaul 
of recruitment for hard to fill roles, and maximising career pathways are some of the 
interventions deployed in support of an optimum workforce that is able to meet the future 
needs of the department.

Community, Culture, Business and Services (CCBS)

year, although increased demand and some service expansion means that social worker 
recruitment remains an ongoing priority. A resourcing strategy which pulls together all 
the interventions seeking to address this issue is in the final stages of production; this 
will include measures seeking to increase the recruitment of overseas social workers and 
developing the offer to support emotional wellbeing to aid retention and resilience in role.

There are some national developments in Children’s Services in the coming year which 
will influence the future workforce. This includes the outcomes of the children’s social care 
review, developments in Special Education Needs and the future governance model for 
schools. The department will be developing strategies to respond to these developments  
in the coming year.

During the last year Children’s Services staff have developed new ways of working in 
response to changes to Government guidance relating to COVID-19. This has enabled a 
return to face-to-face working with social care and education staff returning in full to direct 
working with children, families, and schools. Staff absence due to COVID-19 continues to be 
a pressure upon services, particularly in children’s residential and social care. This is in the 
context of increased demand upon children’s social care which remains circa 20% above 
pre-pandemic levels.

The most significant risk in the Children’s Services workforce is the shortage of Qualified 
Social Workers which reflects the challenges in supply that exist nationally and particularly 
in the South-East. During the last year external turnover in children’s social workers has 
increased by 7% to 20%, at least in part due to latent job movement pressures which were 
realised post-COVID. We have recruited more than 90 new social workers during the last 

Children’s Services

During 2021 to 2022 most headquarters staff have continued to work from home. Staff 
working in the community social work teams have also largely worked from home, albeit 
visiting their office base and undertaking face-to-face visits as restrictions have eased. 
Hybrid working is now established as the norm for most teams and feedback indicates  
this is valued because of the greater flexibility and better life balance it provides.

The workloads for the social work teams across all client groups has increased,  
with staff reporting capacity challenges and fatigue as the pressures have amplified.  
The reporting period has also seen turnover amongst the social work teams increase  
with staff moving from front line roles into jobs they perceive will be less stressful.  
To counter this trend, significant effort and resource has been channelled into recruitment 
and retention strategies which now appear to be paying dividends as vacancy levels reduce 
and capacity in the teams increases.

Hybrid working is not an option for staff working within HCC Care and Reablement given 
the need to provide direct care, either in younger or older adults units or in the homes of 
services users. However, both services strive to offer as much flexibility as possible with 
significant part-time working evident across the teams. A huge amount of effort has been 
directed into supporting staff wellbeing and there is a department-wide focus to improve 
recruitment and retention. Strategies aimed at increasing the potential pool of available 
talent, maximising career pathways and improving recognition and reward are intended  
to create additional workforce capacity.

However, recruitment and retention of the social care and public health workforce remain  
a significant challenge for the department.

Adults’ Health and Care (AHC) 

P
age 22



Workforce report   1312   Hampshire County Council

Staff Networks remain a critical part of our organisation, during the pandemic they have 
pulled together to support various well-being initiatives as well as directly contributing to 
numerous activities that have sought to both keep staff safe and ensure continued delivery 
of key services to the residents of Hampshire. Our networks are: 

 ● Black and Minority Ethnic Network (BME) – 103 members 
 ● Carers and Working Parents Network – 243 members 
 ● Disability Network – 130 members 
 ● LGBT+ Network – 65 members 

In addition to the Staff Networks the Council has several smaller groups that also support 
employees in relation to a wide range of issues and characteristics such: 

 ● Auto-immune support group 
 ● CCBS’s Women’s Forum 
 ● ETE’s Better Balance Network  
 ● Neurodiverse Staff Group 
 ● Women in IT

Trade Unions have continued to play their part during the past year and have  
remained a consistent presence in our organisation, working closely with managers 
throughout the pandemic in the shared best interest of our service users and the staff  
who provide those services.

Staff Networks

During the last year, the majority of ETE office-based staff have formally transitioned to a hybrid 
way of working with great success. The insight gained from agile ways of working during the 
pandemic and staff surveys has informed tools, techniques and guidance whichhave been 
deployed to embed new ways of working and underpin a high-performance culture.

The departments Driving Change programme, supported by the senior leadership 
team, has focussed on maximising staff engagement, helping people to maintain their 
mental wellbeing and a healthy work life balance to continue to thrive during a period of 
unprecedented change. There has been significant investment in our people to continue to 
build capability and capacity fit for the future and in recognition of recruitment and retention 
challenges, to support a continuous talent pipeline. It is hoped that the focused investment 
in diversifying and expanding our apprenticeship offer and increasing the number of 
graduate placements in respect of civil engineering, will directly contribute to growing our 
own talent base particularly in professions which are in high demand e.g. engineering and 
where we continue to experience significant recruitment and retention challenges.

The department continues to develop its resourcing strategy with values-based recruitment 
a critical component including the introduction of values-based interviews across multiple 
roles. Evidentially, this is already paying dividends in enabling the department to recruit 
people who share the departments vision, are aligned to the departments values and equally 
support employee retention by making sure we are the right organisation for individuals.

Economy, Transport and Environment (ETE) 

During the period of the pandemic, most staff continued to work from home, with 
performance remaining high. During the last year, the department has seen a change  
to its ways of working, with hybrid working becoming the norm.

A significant amount of engagement with staff was undertaken ahead of introducing hybrid 
working to ensure that people had the opportunity to inform what would work best for them 
and the services they provide. Having had a sustained period of working remotely during 
the pandemic provided our people with invaluable insight into how best to move into a new 
way of working. 

The department has for many years had challenges in recruiting for and retaining some  
of our more specialist roles, e.g. IT and Legal and for some of our transactional roles at the 
lower grades, such as those deployed in the IBC. These challenges have typically been 
addressed through regular recruitment campaigns, an increased use of social media and 
the application of market supplements. However, the current economic context and high 
employment levels are resulting in increased challenges for these, and other roles and  
we continue to explore opportunities to address them.

Corporate Services

P
age 23



Workforce report   1514   Hampshire County Council

Our people

P
age 24



Workforce report   1716   Hampshire County Council

2010 marks the beginning of Government austerity and our workforce remains below  
the levels of that time with FTE currently 10% lower although this %. This equates to a 
reduction in actual Headcount of 69 during the last 12 months. 

There continues to be a greater reduction (-11%) of senior grades (H+) than the  
overall reduction.

Note: the table above includes staff employed on the EHCC grading structure as well as 
staff (circa 4%) paid on other terms e.g. School Teachers Pay/Soulbury terms and conditions.

Headcount Full-time equivalent

Grade 2010 2022 % change 2010 2022 % change

H+ 1,024 857 -16% 924 819 -11%

G 1,052 1,028 -2% 938 944 1%

F 2,249 1,755 -22% 1,969 1,591 -19%

E 2,114 2,136 1% 1,847 1,923 4%

D 2,915 1,907 -35% 2,347 1,533 -35%

C 2,586 2,422 -6% 1,786 1,912 7%

B 2,095 1,334 -36% 955 735 -23%

A- 848 1,176 39% 326 481 48%

Total 14,883 12,726 -14% 11,092 9,938 -10%

Workforce headcount and full-time equivalent 

0

H+

G

F

E

D

C

B

A-

Full-time equivalent 2010

Full-time equivalent 2022

Headcount 2010

Headcount 2022

500 1,000 1,500 2,000 2,500

Headcount

Workforce headcount and full-time equivalent 

We continue to explore different ways to analyse our workforce data to understand more 
about our people.

The following graph and table show a comparison of our workforce by grade, reflected both  
in terms of ‘Headcount’ (each individual person) and full time equivalent (FTE) between  
April 2010 and March 2022.

Workforce data

An overview summary of the overall workforce data 

P
age 25



Workforce report   1918   Hampshire County Council

This year continues to reflect an even distribution of age groups above 25, across  
all departments, shown in Appendix four. However, we have significantly less employees  
aged below the age of 25, with this figure further reducing in this reporting year, and  
we believe a contributing factor is likely to be that many of our roles may require 
qualifications/experience and therefore applicants are nearer the top end of this age 
bracket. There are widely reported reasons why a workforce may be older, such as the 
growing trend to remain in education or travel, however the reason behind this trend in  
the Council is unknown. 

0

Percentage of part-time

H+

G

F

E

D

C

B

A-

G
ra

de
 e

qu
iv

al
en

t

16-34

35-54

55+

40%20% 60% 80% 100%

Representation of part-time working across grades, by age group

Age 

The age profile across departments within the Council is shown in Appendix four. 

Typically, our data suggests that younger people are more highly represented in our lower 
graded roles, whilst those in the older age categories may take up a higher proportion of 
senior roles, this is likely due to both actual and perceived levels of experience required  
in a role.

Across most grades our data suggest more staff in the older age categories work part-time 
more than those in the younger age categories, however, within our more senior roles (H+) 
this trend is reversed, with staff in the younger age categories (16-34) working part-time, all 
of whom are female.

Diversity 

The Equality Act 2010 (Specific duties) Regulations 2011 requires listed public authorities to 
publish equality information on an annual basis, the diversity information contained within 
this report complies with those regulations and goes beyond those legal requirements to 
support the building of valuable insight that will support us to become even more inclusive. 

We continue to encourage employees to declare their personal diversity information, 
however, it remains discretionary. We know one of the barriers to reporting data is the 
language used to describe personal characteristics and as such a project is underway to 
update the questions we ask. Once these changes are made, they will be communicated, 
and we anticipate this will help to reduce the gaps in our data.

For those not wishing to disclose their data there is an option of ‘prefer not to say’ which 
we encourage people to use to support further confidence in our data. We know from the 
responses to our Inclusion, Diversity and Wellbeing survey (May 2021) that the main reason 
why people chose not to provide their personal data is ‘my personal information should 
not be relevant in the workplace,’ followed by ‘I am not comfortable sharing my personal 
information.’ We continue to provide communication that helps to explain the relevance of 
the data and the security measures in place regarding its use and handling. 

We remain conscious that whilst we report about our people in specific communities for 
example our ‘ethnic minority community’ or our ‘female community’, we are in fact all 
unique, and many of us will associate with more than one of these communities at any given 
time. ‘Intersectionality’ refers to the fact we all have multiple identities which shape our life 
experiences and as an organisation we are therefore seeking not only to understand the 
different staff communities that exist, but also how these overlap for individuals, to shape 
each separate employee’s experience within the Council. 

P
age 26



Workforce report   2120   Hampshire County Council

0

Percentage of part-time

H+

G

F

E

D

C

B

A-

G
ra

de
 e

qu
iv

al
en

t

40%20% 60% 80% 100%

Disability no/unknown

Disability yes

Representation of part-time working across grades, by disability

Of the workforce, 4% (383) of females and 6.1% (183) of males have recorded a disability and 
our data shows that those declaring a disability are not concentrated in any one age group. 
Accepting that there will be staff with disabilities who have not declared them, the graph 
shows that recorded disability and part time working both decrease the more senior the 
grade. In addition, there are less recorded disabilities the older the employee. 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f h
ea

dc
ou

nt

0

4%

2%

6%

Year

March 
2016

March
2017

March
2018

March
2019

March
2020

March
2021

March
2022

4.1%
3.6%

2.8%

1.9%
1.7%

1.4%

4.5%

Declared disability representation

The graph below shows that the level of declared disability has increased since March 
2016, with 4.5% (566) of employees now having recorded themselves as having a disability. 
This represents an increase from March 2021 and is likely to be linked to two factors; the 
pandemic (with staff wanting to record that they have a disability for well-being purposes); 
and the work that the Disability Network, supported by the Corporate Management Team, 
has undertaken to encourage staff to record this information.

There is little recent data in the public domain about disability numbers in Hampshire, 
however a recent Government Report (Office for National Statistics, October – December 
2020) noted that 20% of working age adults report to have a disability, an increase from 
19% last year. Accepting that there will be a proportion of this group who are unable to 
work, and that we will undoubtedly have employees who have chosen not to declare their 
disability, we might still expect the number of people reporting disabilities to be higher. 

Disability 

P
age 27



Workforce report   2322   Hampshire County Council

As stated in last year’s Annual Workforce Report our ethnicity representation remains above 
the ethnicity representation in the Hampshire area (excluding Portsmouth and Southampton) 
which is currently 5% (ONS Census 2011). However, it will be interesting to compare this 
data with the next Census figures when they are available later this year. 

H+

F-G

D-E

<A-C

G
ra

de
 e

qu
iv

al
en

t

Percentage of headcount
No data provided

Ethnic minority

Prefer not to say

White

0 40%20% 60% 80% 100%

91%

87%

87%

86%10%

8%

8%

3%

Ethnicity breakdown across grades

The following graph reflects how ethnicity is broken down across grades.

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f h
ea

dc
ou

nt

0

4%

2%

6%

8%

10%

Year

2016/2017 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020 2020/2021 2021/2022

8.3%8.2%8%7.9%
7.4%

6.7%

Ethnicity representation

Ethnicity 

Reflected in the table below we can see that 87% of our staff classify themselves as white 
and 8.3% classify themselves as from an ethnic minority. This is a marginal increase in staff 
from an ethnic minority from 8.2% last year.  

P
age 28



Workforce report   2524   Hampshire County Council

47%

53%

56%

44%

46%

54%

Full-time

Part-time

Ethnicity

No data provided Prefer not to say White

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f h
ea

dc
ou

nt

0

49%

51%

Ethnic minority

Ethnicity representation across full-time/part-time employees

71% of our ethnic minority staff are female and 29% are male. These figures are  
different to our organisational gender profile, which is representative of 76% female  
and 24% male employees.

This year we have also looked at ethnicity representation across part time working, 56% 
from an ethnic minority are working less than 37 hours per week. This can be partially 
understood due to greater representation of ethnic minority staff in grades A-C, of which 
A to C Grades have most part time staff. We know too that the majority of our part-time 
workers are female which may also link to the fact that the majority of our ethnic minority 
staff are also female which correlates with the data provided in the paragraph above. 
Appendix five shows our ethnicity profile across departments.

Asian

Black

Other/mixed

232
(21.9%)

199
(18.8%)

630 
(59.4%)

Ethnic minority representation

The 8.4% of ethnic minority staff can be further broken down as follows: 

P
age 29



Workforce report   2726   Hampshire County Council

Gender identity

In addition to gender, an employee can choose to record their gender identity. This is  
‘a person’s innate sense of their own gender which may or may not correspond to the sex 
they were assigned at birth’ (Inclusive Employers). Detailed analysis is still not possible since 
only 4.2% of our people have currently reported this information (risen from 3.5% last year).

Female Male

Grade Full-time Part-time Total Full-time Part-time Total

H+ 43% 13% 57% 40% 3% 43%

G 42% 23% 65% 32% 3% 35%

F 49% 25% 74% 24% 3% 26%

E 48% 28% 76% 20% 4% 24%

D 38% 38% 76% 20% 4% 24%

C 22% 55% 77% 13% 9% 23%

B 5% 78% 83% 3% 14% 17%

A- 2% 93% 95% 2% 4% 5%

Total 32% 44% 76% 18% 6% 24%

Gender representation across grades, full-time and part-time roles

H+

G

F

E

D

C

B

A-

G
ra

de
 e

qu
iv

al
en

t

Male full-time

Male part-time

Female full-time

Female part-time

0 500500 1,000 1,500

Headcount

Gender representation across grades, full-time and part-time roles

Gender 

The graph below reflects our headcount by gender and full/part time working profile as of 
31 March 2022. As previously reported our workforce remains predominantly female with  
a significant proportion of that workforce also being part-time.

This data also shows that half of our workforce works part-time. 

P
age 30



Workforce report   2928   Hampshire County Council

During 2021 to 2022, 513 ‘Keeping in Touch’ (KIT) days (encouraged within our Maternity 
and Adoption Policies) were taken by Council employees. Less maternity leave was taken; 
however, an increased number of KIT days and paternity leave have been taken this year. 
Per maternity leave headcount, the average number of KIT days taken was 1.4 per person. 
There may be a number of benefits to the individual and the organisation associated with 
the use of KIT days and we would therefore want this figure to be higher. We are therefore 
continuing to work with our Carers and Working Parents Network to understand how these 
can be better promoted and utilised by our managers and their staff through updating our 
family friendly policies. Additionally, a buddy scheme has been launched by the Carers 
and Working Parents Network for members who are returning from maternity/paternity or 
adoption leave which we anticipate will help with this.

Type of Leave Headcount

Maternity leave 374

Shared parental leave 11

Paternity leave 59

Adoption leave 4

Keep in touch days 513

Types of leave

Pregnancy and maternity 

The below table shows the number of staff who started, or were on maternity leave, from  
1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022. It also shows us the number of employees (headcount) who 
have taken shared parental leave, adoption leave and paternity leave. 

Nationality 

The nationality profile of the Council is presented below. We have not seen a significant 
change in these figures following the EU exit.

Nationality profile

Residency status Headcount Percentage

UK National 9,342 73.4%

No data provided 2,642 20.8%

Non UK or EU National 374 2.9%

EU National 368 2.9%

Total 12,726 100%

P
age 31



Workforce report   3130   Hampshire County Council

We continue to work closely with the LGBT+ Network to build trust and in the future,  
we hope this will enable us to consider how the Council compares to the Hampshire 
community specifically.

In terms of national comparisons data from the Office of National Statistics (March 2020) 
shows that 94.6% of the population identified as heterosexual/straight and 2.2% as bisexual, 
gay or lesbian. Acknowledging our significant data gap (55%), we can however still see that 
within the Council the number reporting as bisexual, gay or lesbian is about the UK average 
at 2.4%. It will be interesting to revisit this data once the 2021 Census results have been 
published and compare it to a fuller set of workforce data.

Sexual orientation Headcount Percentage

Bisexual 104 0.8%

Gay man 67 0.5%

Gay woman/lesbian 82 0.6%

Heterosexual (straight) 5,149 40.5%

No data provided 6,990 54.9%

Other 51 0.4%

Prefer not to say 283 2.2%

Total 12,726 100%

Sexual orientation representation

Sexual orientation 

Since reporting our employees’ sexual orientation data for the first-time last year, 45% 
of employees have now provided their information. This is an increase of 20% in the 
last reporting year. It is important to acknowledge the trust that has been placed in the 
organisation by those staff who have chosen to do so. Whilst we can provide a high-level 
organisational report on this data, it is NOT information that can be accessed by individual 
line managers to protect anonymity. The purpose of reflecting it here is to help us inform 
our strategies and target initiatives to improve the workplace for LGBT+ employees in 
making the Council an even more inclusive place to work.

The sexual orientation profile is shown below: 

Religion Headcount Percentage

Bahai 2 0.0%

Buddhist 70 0.6%

Christian 2,786 21.9%

Hindu 67 0.5%

Jewish 4 0.0%

Muslim (Islam) 44 0.4%

No data provided 6,057 47.6%

No religion or belief 2,987 23.5%

Not stated 499 3.9%

Other belief 123 1.0%

Other religion 60 0.5%

Sikhism 23 0.2%

Zoroastrian 4 0.0%

Total 12,726 100%

Religion or belief representation 

Religion and belief 

It is important for us to understand and be sensitive to the religious beliefs of our workforce 
to help promote an inclusive working environment. To this end we encourage staff to 
share information with colleagues around religious festivals and celebrations that they are 
involved in, to help educate and inform others. We want staff to feel confident and safe to 
share their faith at work and note that Inclusive Employers state, ‘employees who connect 
with the deeper purpose of their work through their beliefs are thought to be more resilient, 
responsive and passionate about their work.’ 

As the quality of our data improves in relation to religion, we will seek to provide 
comparison to regional and national data as we do with the other protected characteristics. 

The religious profile across our organisation is as follows: 

P
age 32



Workforce report   3332   Hampshire County Council

Employee  
lifecycle

P
age 33



Workforce report   3534   Hampshire County Council

Attract

P
age 34



Workforce report   3736   Hampshire County Council

Gender
Applications

Shortlistings

Hires

Female Male
0

20%

40%

60%

80%

78%

26%30%

74%

22%

70%

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge

Gender breakdown by applications/shortlistings/hires

This year’s figure remains slightly below the number of applications received in 2019 to 
2020 pre-pandemic which showed an average of 10 applications per role. The decrease  
in applications is perhaps expected since according to the Office for National Statistics  
April 2022 UK employment figures, revealed a decrease in unemployment from 4.9% in 
April last year to 3.8%.

Of the 22,662 applications, 31% (7,091) were shortlisted for assessment or interview, 
diversity breakdowns are shown in the graphs below (pages 38-40).

Diversity of our applicants 

70% of applications were received by female applicants and 74% of applicants shortlisted 
or called for assessment were female which is on a par with reported numbers last year, 
and still demonstrates that we remain more attractive as an employer in the female labour 
market. We also understand this to a trend across other Councils.

In this current reporting year, we advertised circa 2,900 directly employed roles across all 
grades. This is a large increase from 2020 to 2021 where only 1,470 roles were advertised 
and reflects both an easing of COVID-19 measures as well as the increased number of 
leavers experienced in this reporting year.

22,662 applications were received, an average of 8 applications per role which is  
a decrease from the average of 15 applications received per role for 2020 to 2021. 

We remain focussed on ensuring that our jobs are attractive to as diverse a pool of 
candidates as possible, preferably reflective of our local labour market. This includes 
attracting new employees into our organisation and developing existing employees into 
new opportunities. 

A key part of this is ensuring that our benefits package (Employee Value Proposition) 
remains attractive, and we will touch on this further in ‘Reward and recognise’ section.

In July 2021, we published the County Council’s Zero Tolerance Statement. As an inclusive 
organisation, we take pride in promoting, valuing, and celebrating diversity. As a public 
body serving Hampshire, we seek to ensure zero tolerance of harassment, discrimination, 
bullying and abuse and will respond promptly to any incidents of these.

In October 2021, the Council became a Level 2 Disability Confident Employer. The Disability 
Confident scheme can help us: 

 ● tap into a wider pool of talent to meet our workforce needs;
 ● recruit and retain high-quality staff;
 ● reduce staff turnover, saving time and money on recruitment and training;
 ● hold onto valuable skills and experience;
 ● reduce sickness absence;
 ● improve staff morale by showing a commitment to treat all employees fairly;
 ● positively change attitudes, behaviours and cultures.

Being an inclusive employer of choice

Attract

P
age 35

https://www.hants.gov.uk/aboutthecouncil/equality/objectives


Workforce report   3938   Hampshire County Council

We advertised 660 roles graded H+, we received 48% of applications from female applicants.

19% of applications to the H+ grade roles were from ethnic minorities. Out of the ethnic 
minority applicants, 33% were female. Of short listings, 12% were ethnic minorities, and of 
hires 3% were ethnic minorities. As shown in the ‘An overview of changes 2021 to 2022’ 
graph on page three, our ethnic minority representation in H+ grades has increased from 
2.9% to 3.3%.

Of the total number (22,662) of applications received 7% declared a disability. Of shortlisted 
applicants, 8% declared a disability. It is positive to see that this year’s figures are higher 
than reported in 2019 to 2020 pre-pandemic and are higher than the representation of 
employees declaring a disability at the Council. 6% of applicants hired declared a disability.

Disability

No/unknown Yes

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

0

Applications

Shortlistings

Hires

6%

95%92%93%

7% 8%

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge

Disability breakdown by applications/shortlistings/hires

In terms of shortlisting, ethnicity data show that 88% of those shortlisted were white 
applicants and 12% from ethnic minorities. This is a decrease from last year by 1% of ethnic 
minority applicants being shortlisted. 9% of applicants hired were from an ethnic minority.

Ethnicity

White Ethnic minority

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

0

Applications

Shortlistings

Hires

91%83%

17%

88%

12% 9%

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge

Ethnicity breakdown by applications/shortlistings/hires

Having reported last year that the slight decline in applications received from females may 
be linked to the additional caring responsibilities that COVID-19 had created, it is likely 
therefore that the increase may be linked to the lifting of COVID-19 restrictions. This year’s 
data shows there is also a slight increase on female applications received compared with 
2019 to 2020 data pre pandemic. 78% of applicants hired were female. 

The ethnicity breakdown of applicants shows that 83% of applications received were from 
white applicants and 17% from ethnic minorities, an increase of 3% from last year. 

P
age 36



Workforce report   4140   Hampshire County Council

Armed Forces community 

Our commitment to the county’s Armed Forces community has been recognised once 
again, by being re-accredited with the Gold Award in the MOD’s Employer Recognition 
Scheme. The Council employs ex-service personnel and reservists from the Royal Navy,  
the Army and Royal Air Force, with reservists entitled to two weeks additional paid leave  
for training and other duties. 

As part of our responsibilities under the Armed Forces Covenant, we recognise that 
attracting more armed forces veterans to apply for our roles has the potential for:

 ● Bringing varied skills, knowledge, and experience.
 ● Adding to the different lived experiences, and perspectives in the Council.
 ● Increasing the skills available in languages, handling hazardous substances, 
HGV driving, engineering, first aid and catering to name a few. 

 ● Supporting our Inclusion and Diversity strategy more generally. 

We have had 1.6% (364) of applicants who are Armed Forces veterans apply for our 
vacancies. Figures suggest that an equal proportion of veterans applying for our vacancies 
are shortlisted and then hired for roles.

progression within the organisation.

The roles which have been advertised continue to reflect the full range of services the 
Council delivers. Departmental workforce data tells us that the profile of recruitment ‘hot 
spots’ remains the same as in recent years, including, for example, care assistants, nurses, 
cooks, catering assistants and social workers. 26% of all roles advertised were in catering 
and 14% were for administrative roles.

However, whilst we have received more applications for some roles our areas of recruitment 
difficulty in other areas remain consistent. For example, whilst there may have been an 
increase in applications for some roles, for example catering and administration, this does 
not necessarily mean appointments have been secured for those roles.

During the last year, ETE modified its attraction strategies to support the continued 
recruitment of technical and professional specialisms. This included utilisation of an 
employer branding toolkit to position ETE more competitively in the recruitment market, 
revised marketing campaigns, and introduced a Values based recruitment pilot for a 
cohort of Transport and Engineering roles for which the market is fiercely competitive 
both regionally and nationally. Following the success of the pilot, roll out of values-based 
recruitment has been extended, with training targeted at recruiting managers where 
roles are considered hard to fill and where evidentially retention rates are increasing and 
therefore prioritised action is required.

Of the 22,662 applications received in 2021 to 2022, 10% (2,187) of the applicants were 
internal, this has increased from 6% across 2020 to 2021 which could suggest that staff are 
looking at different career opportunities across the Council now that COVID-19 pressures 
are easing in many areas of the organisation.

This is supported by the increase in internal turnover (staff moving jobs within the Council), 
which has increased at a higher rate than external turnover (staff leaving the Council). 
Internal applicants make up 15% (1,053) of those shortlisted which has increased from 
12% in 2020 to 2021 showing that we continue to shortlist more of our internal staff. 
Internal applicants are 1.9 times more likely to be hired than external applicants, offering 

Age

0

20%

30%

40%

10%

65+16-24 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64

Applications

Shortlistings

Hires

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge

Age group breakdown by applications/shortlistings/hires

Further insight into the sexual orientation profile of our applicants is discussed on page 52.

47% of applications were received by applicants aged below 34 years of age, and 
predominantly these applications were received across roles graded C to E which  
is on a par with the last reporting year. The age profile is shown in the graph below. 

P
age 37



Workforce report   4342   Hampshire County Council

Resource

P
age 38



Workforce report   4544   Hampshire County Council

As with all large organisations our workforce strategies enable the effective deployment of 
a range of resourcing options recognising that no one resourcing option would work across 
the breadth of services we deliver. 

It should be noted that our overall agency workforce costs have increased compared to  
the previous year. However, this was in line (proportionately) with our spend in 2019 to 2020 
(pre the COVID-19 pandemic) and continues to be predominantly within the Social Care and 
IT sectors.

Of those directly employed at the end of March 2022, departments engage circa 13% on  
a temporary basis at any one time, which is an increase on last year, again enabling flexible 
management of resource and costs to meet demand across services. 

Departments have developed hybrid working arrangements which combine the flexibility 
and efficiencies of virtual working with the benefits gained by physically bringing people 
together on a regular basis. Staff who were placed on furlough which continued this last 
year have returned to work and services have resumed business as usual, albeit with new 
ways of working.

Work is planned for HCC Care as part of the department’s recruitment and retention 
strategy, given their workforce has experienced similar issues in terms of vacancy levels, 
particularly amongst care and nursing staff. It is hoped that overseas recruitment for nursing 
staff and the more effective use of social media advertising and improved onboarding for 
care staff will address this shortfall. 

The acute hospital systems continue to create additional demand for services across  
social work teams, the Reablement service and HCC Care. Reablement have maintained 
levels of support, despite their recruitment challenges and have established very successful 
apprenticeship posts and well-defined career pathways to attract and retain staff within  
the service. 

There has been a significant growth in temporary AHC social work posts, funded by 
government monies, to support the response to COVID-19. However, whilst there have been 
additional funds there has been no increase in the workforce supply, particularly posts that 
require a professional qualification, such as social work.  This increased demand has fuelled 
competition between employers to attract and retain staff, using incentives such as ‘golden 
handshake’ or ‘golden handcuff’ payments and market supplements to remain competitive 
in the employment market.

Children’s Services also has other critical recruitment challenges (beyond Qualified 
Social Workers) which extends across several services. The most critical of these relate to 
staffing in Children’s Residential Homes and Special Education Needs Caseworkers. Work 
is underway in relation to these services to develop pay benchmarking data to inform 
potential developments in remuneration and other measures to support retention such as 

Year
Directly employeed

Agency

Casuals

20

40

60

80

100

120

£m
 w

or
kf

or
ce

 c
os

t

0

Total workforce costs £m

Typical resourcing options available include recruitment of permanent or fixed-term 
employees, promotion, or movement within and across departments, deployment of  
agency workers, casual workers and external contractors or consultants. 

In Hampshire, ‘demand for labour remains strong’ (Hampshire Monthly Labour Market 
Update April 2022, p. 2). According to the CIPD, recruitment difficulties remain high in the 
public sector (52%), with 46% of employers reporting vacancies that are hard to fill (CIPD, 
Labour Outlook Report, Winter 2021 to 2022, p. 3).

The graph below shows the total workforce costs, split by our workforce ‘resource’ type,  
i.e. directly employed (permanent/temporary), agency (staff, contractors/consultants) and 
casual workers. 

Facilitate all available talent to apply

Resource

P
age 39



Workforce report   4746   Hampshire County Council

aid recruitment whilst deploying an increased number of apprenticeship opportunities to 
existing staff to invest in their development and build capacity and capability aligned to our 
future workforce needs. Additionally, recruitment and retention strategies are being applied 
with a review of market supplements implemented for high-risk roles.

Secondments/acting up arrangements 

Another way in which we resource our workforce is to provide ‘acting up’ roles, 
secondments, and promotions. During the last 12 months there have been approximately 
621 instances of people securing such roles (defined by actions in the HR system), which 
is higher than last year, again this may be linked to the increase in roles being advertised 
internally during the pandemic. However, this is a slightly lower figure than reported 
pre pandemic of 703 in 2019 to 2020, we will continue to monitor this data and provide 
opportunities for our staff to develop.

Flexible working 

It is important for us to pro-actively consider how best to attract and retain staff  
who may require part time or more flexible working. Making flexible working more 
accessible to employees remains a priority action. Work continues to embed on the  
action of the development of ‘open working’ options for employees across the Council  
in accordance with business needs following the launch of the Open Workplace Policy.  
The last reporting periods have shown that it is possible to deliver in more flexible ways, 
without compromising on performance, and we will use this experience to support 
improvements in this area. Page 27 shows that circa half of our staff work less than full-
time, defined by working under 37 hours, or less than 52 weeks per year. Insight from 
the Inclusion, Diversity and Wellbeing survey in May 2021 has enabled us to inform our 
inclusion and diversity priorities.

Connect2Hampshire 

Connect2Hampshire have continued to provide a fundamental role in sourcing temporary 
workers to supplement and support the Council’s permanent workforce. During the 
last year, our response to the COVID-19 pandemic has significantly impacted our levels 
of demand for agency workers in some services, but the pandemic has also further 
accelerated broader challenges in the workforce market, impacting in some cases 
Connect2Hampshire’s ability to recruit some of the harder to recruit roles to the full extent 
required. However, despite these challenges the agency has successfully recruited and 
supplied significant numbers of workers throughout the year, amounting to approximately 
£30m of revenue expenditure from the Council.

the consideration of rotas and training. The recruitment and retention of school escorts is 
an area of growing concern with increased turnover and a shortage in supply. Alternative 
methods of attractions will be explored to support this area. 

Market supplements 

For some roles there may be specific pressures in attracting and retaining staff and where 
appropriate the Council will consider market supplements, taking account of published 
market pay and turnover data and other evidence supporting the business case. Market 
supplements are temporary payments and subject to ongoing review by Departmental and 
Corporate Management Teams on a regular basis. 

We know there are 31 roles that are difficult to recruit and retain staff. These roles can 
attract market supplements where appropriate in recognition of the highly sought after or 
specific skill shortage.

Regular reviews of market supplements continue to be critical in being able to address 
some of our more challenging areas in relation to recruitment and retention. During this 
year, we have identified circa four roles that require consideration of what measures, some 
of which may be market supplements, that could support recruitment and retention.

A review of market supplements has led to an increase in the payments made to nursing 
staff and the introduction of a new market supplement for their leadership cohort. Market 
Supplements have also been implemented to support the introduction of a new Senior 
Social Worker role to champion excellent social work practice. As well harmonising the 
expectations of the previous Senior Practitioner role the Excellent Practice competency 
framework recognises the professional practice of qualified social workers and provides 
additional remuneration as well a clear career pathway.

Based upon pay benchmarking information, new market supplement arrangements for 
Children’s Social Workers were introduced in November 2021 alongside the introduction 
of a new Senior Social Worker role. It remains too early to determine the impact of these 
measures upon recruitment and retention at this stage.

There are also continued pressures in recruiting to many professional roles and specialisms 
such as planning, engineering, transport professionals, surveyors, architects, countryside 
rangers, arborists, catering and LGV Drivers. The market for the recruitment of these 
professions remains very competitive and has been exacerbated further in the last year 
because of national skills shortages, demand outstripping supply and the consequential 
impact resulting in significantly increased remuneration predominately in the private sector. 
To mitigate the increased risks, which include retention, both CCBS and ETE have placed 
increased focus on growing our own staff by continuing to engage graduates across 
multiple disciplines, increased the breadth of apprenticeships on offer and profiling this to 

P
age 40



Workforce report   4948   Hampshire County Council

our own permanent workforce recruitment and retention will ensure that the Council’s 
future workforce needs are able to be met in what will continue to be a challenging and 
changing environment.

In terms of supporting the Council’s response to the pandemic, Connect2Hampshire’s  
main area of focus has remained on providing agency workers to enable us to resource  
our temporary ‘Track and Trace’ team, as well as the provision of lateral flow tests.  
These two large projects required more than 100 agency workers over a period of more 
than six months.

More widely the demand for Qualified Social Workers has continued to grow (again in part 
due to the impact of the pandemic), although the workforce challenges being experienced 
nationally to attract, recruit, and retain professionals with these particular skills (especially 
within Children’s Services), has made this a particularly hard role for Connect2Hampshire to 
recruit the full number of the workers needed. Connect2Hampshire has, however, provided 
the ability for the agency to engage with their supply chain to provide different models of 
temporary supply back into the Council, alongside their core agency provision.

Similarly, the demand for agency workers to support our broader social care services  
(such as our Adults Health and Care internal residential and nursing homes), has remained 
high. However, despite increased promotion of careers in care this has remained a difficult 
area to recruit to and retain workers within, and this was further impacted in November 2021 
when the legislation mandating Coronavirus vaccinations for care workers was introduced. 
Finding new and innovative ways to address workforce challenges in both areas remains a 
key priority for Connect2Hampshire.

In other areas of the Council, administrative roles have remained stable over the last year, 
but the requirement for IT and other Professional roles increased, partly due to previously 
paused projects (because of the pandemic) re-commencing or starting up. This has also 
included Public Health roles, which have proven harder to fill due to the competitive 
recruitment market currently, and these skills being in high demand across other public 
sector organisations. Cleaning roles have also become more difficult to fill, and this could 
be attributed to competitive rates of pay in local companies and roles in other sectors such 
as retail, perhaps being more attractive for the same or more pay.

One of the key objectives for the Council in creating Connect2Hampshire was the  
ability to directly source temporary agency workers to support improvements in quality, 
continuity, and sustainability, and this is therefore a key performance measure for the 
agency. Overall, the number of people registering directly with Connect2Hampshire 
remained stable over the year. However, the number of roles that Connect2Hampshire have 
been able to fill directly (as opposed to an agency on their framework filling), has increased 
from 30% in 2020 to 2021 to 42% 2021 to 2022. This will remain a key focus for the agency 
in the next 12 months.

The Council will continue to work closely with Connect2Hampshire in the coming months 
to utilise their insight on what works or does not work in terms of candidate attraction, 
recruitment, and retention in the current market. This, along with insight obtained from  

P
age 41



Workforce report   5150   Hampshire County Council

Onboard

P
age 42



Workforce report   5352   Hampshire County Council

meetings are scheduled bi-annually and whilst only one has taken place so far, early 
feedback would indicate that the new starters were positive about their experience of 
joining our organisation. Feedback received stated that the new starters had joined friendly, 
supportive teams where colleagues across the Council were receptive to helping them.

In 2021 to 2022 there were 3,457 new starters, which is reflective of the increase in roles 
advertised and the number of leavers. This is broken down into 1,956 external starters, and 
1,501 internal starters. 

The workforce profile of new external starters can be seen as 90% white and 9.2% of ethnic 
minorities, 5% of staff declared a disability. In analysing the sexual orientation profile of our 
new staff, we can see that our profile remains the same as last year and that we do not 
appear to be discriminating in this regard.

Onboarding continues to be a more critical phase in the employee life cycle since our 
welcome over the last 12 months has remained largely ‘virtual’ for office-based staff. 

All new permanent and temporary staff who join the Council are ‘inducted’ into the 
organisation through a formal ‘induction process’ that is led and facilitated by their new  
line manager.  This remains the case whether being inducted virtually or in person.

The ‘Welcome to Hampshire’ module of the corporate induction is currently being reviewed 
considering changes to the Council’s political and officer leadership and to ensure that it 
reflects the current culture of the organisation and its corporate priorities. It is anticipated 
that it will be launched in early summer.

In addition to specific role induction, departments have continued to provide information 
and context in respect of their specific service and department.

We recognise that onboarding through the pandemic has been challenging for new 
employees and managers. Feedback suggests that Microsoft Teams continues to be a key 
element of a successful virtual induction as new employees can visually meet the team and 
be shown documents and processes in real time.

Many of our departments are also now ensuring that even where a new member of staff 
may work virtually for most of their working week, during induction, physical meetings 
and familiarisation sessions are built into their induction plans. There is an expectation 
from Directors and their Management Teams, that in the early weeks of the induction that 
it will involve an element of face-to-face meetings so that new staff can get to know their 
team more easily. Feedback suggests that this has been valuable for them to get to know 
colleagues and more widely stakeholders within the organisation. Being face to face has 
helped them more easily understand how their role fits within the wider organisation.

As part of an ongoing programme of staff engagement, the Chief Executive has been 
meeting with new starters to the Council to find out more about their experiences. These 

Onboard

Making sure people are welcomed and inducted

P
age 43



Workforce report   5554   Hampshire County Council

Develop

P
age 44



Workforce report   5756   Hampshire County Council

Transformative Leadership Programme (TLP)

During 2021 to 2022 there was one cohort of the ten month Leadership Development 
Programme – Transformative Leadership Programme (TLP 2021 to 2022) with 83 
participants enrolled in July 2021.

The TLP 2021 to 2022 cohort data below (pages 58-59) shows TLP participant data, 
relative to the percentage of the Hampshire Leaders Network (HLN) participant data. TLP 
participants are nominated from the HLN cohort (H-grade and higher) by Departmental 
Management Teams. Analysis of the TLP 2021 to 2022 data shows that: 

 ● Female participants represent 69% of TLP, which is higher than the HLN average of 57%, 
and higher than for TLP 2020 to 2021. 

 ● The age profile of TLP participants is relatively younger, with 83% of TLP 2020 to 2021 
participants aged 35-54, compared to 66% of HLN being 35-54.

As we have said in previous years, there are links between an organisation’s  
approach to personal development and the positive impact on retention and indeed 
organisational performance.

Despite the continued difficulties of the past year, we have continued to invest,  
formally and informally, in our people. One of the key formal ways in which we do  
so is through a comprehensive learning and development package which includes 
‘Leadership and Management Development’. These are provided through our corporate 
Leadership and Management Development Team and ‘Departmental or Operational 
development’, including professional development for our qualified staff, which is delivered 
through Departmental teams.

Within this report we are only focussed on the organisation-wide ‘Leadership and 
Management Development’.

As an organisation we have invested circa £347K during 2021 to 2022 on Leadership and 
Management, this has been a reduction year on year, due to changes in ways of working. 
The ability to utilise technology has allowed us to deliver the same level of learning 
opportunity with a reduction in cost. 

The Hampshire Leaders Network (HLN) (Grade H+) has continued to meet virtually during 
the year. Working in partnership with the University of Southampton and senior experts from 
within the organisation, HLN ‘Reflect and Refresh’ sessions have focused on organisational 
behavioural change, analytics-based decision making, and future ways of working. In 
addition, active use of Teams Live Events has enabled more to attend and engage in senior 
management briefings. A new series of HLN monthly small group meetings with the Chief 
Executive on a variety of discussion topics have provided the opportunity to share views 
and develop wider organisational insights. Topics have included, digital literacy, new ways 
of working, leadership development and inclusion. Meanwhile joint CMT/DMT meetings 
moved from online, to meeting in-person from September. Over 1,700 attended HLN events 
during 2021 to 2022.

Supporting our people to grow, develop and learn

Develop

P
age 45



Workforce report   5958   Hampshire County Council

Age

0

TLP

H+ grades across the organisation

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

65+16-24 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f h
ea

dc
ou

nt

Age breakdown across TLP, compared to H+ grades  
across the organisation

Disability breakdown across TLP, compared to H+ grades  
across the organisation

Disability

No/unknown Yes

TLP

H+ grades across the organisation

4%
8%

96%91%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f h
ea

dc
ou

nt

0

Ethnicity breakdown across TLP, compared to H+ grades  
across the organisation

Ethnicity

White Ethnic minority

TLP

H+ grades across the organisation

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f h
ea

dc
ou

nt

0

96%

3%5%

95%

Gender
TLP

H+ grades across the organisation

Female Male
0

20%

40%

60%

80%

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f h
ea

dc
ou

nt

43%

69%

31%

57%

Gender breakdown across TLP, compared to H+ grades  
across the organisation

Diversity profiles of TLP participants in comparison  
with our organisational profile

P
age 46



Workforce report   6160   Hampshire County Council

Firefly

Demand for places on the ten month Firefly high-potential development programme for 
staff grades E-G, was oversubscribed so a total of four cohorts involving over 140 Council 
participants started between June and October 2021 (an additional two cohorts). These 
programmes are now designed to combine online and face to face delivery, so unlike  
2020 to 2021, they were not disrupted by COVID-19 during Winter 2021 to 2022.

The Firefly 2021 to 2022 cohort data profiles (pages 62-63) show Firefly participant data, 
relative to the percentage of Council employees (grades E-G) from which most Firefly 
participants are nominated.

 ● Gender, female participants represent 67% of all current Firefly participants, compared  
to 73% for all Council staff (grade E-G). There are proportionately more male participants 
on the programme with 33%, compared to 27% for Council staff (grade E-G). 

 ● Age profile, 40% of Firefly participants are aged 35-44 compared to 27% of all Council 
staff (grade E-G) aged 35-44. 

The 12-month progression data for the 63 participants who completed TLP 2019 to 2021  
in February 2021, shows that: 

 ● 22% (14) participants received Special Recognition Recipients totalling £64,972  
in the past 12 months since completing TLP. This is equivalent to £4,641 per recipient  
and compares to 16% for non-TLP H+ Grades who received an average of £3,609  
per recipient. 

 ● Only 7.4% (5) participants have left the Council within the last 12 months, vs 10.9%  
for non-TLP H+ Grades.

Whilst data of this nature cannot, with certainty, speak to ‘causality’ it would seem to 
suggest that we are successful at selecting employees for this programme who are 
committed to the council and may also speak to this programme being a strong  
retention tool for talented staff. We will continue to monitor this data over time. 

P
age 47



Workforce report   6362   Hampshire County Council

Disability
Firefly

E to G grades across the organisation

No/unknown Yes

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f h
ea

dc
ou

nt

0
3% 5%

97% 95%

Disability breakdown across Firefly, compared to E to G grades  
across the organisation

Ethnicity
Firefly

E to G grades across the organisation

White Ethnic minority

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f h
ea

dc
ou

nt

0

92%

5% 8%

95%

Ethnicity breakdown across Firefly, compared to E to G grades  
across the organisation

Age
Firefly

E to G grades across the organisation

65+16-24 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64
0

20%

30%

40%

10%

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f h
ea

dc
ou

nt

Age breakdown across Firefly, compared to E to G grades  
across the organisation

Gender
Firefly

E to G grades across the organisation

Female
0

20%

40%

60%

80%

Male

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f h
ea

dc
ou

nt

73%67%

33% 27%

Gender breakdown across Firefly, compared to E to G grades  
across the organisation

Diversity profiles of Firefly participants in comparison  
with our organisational profile 

P
age 48



Workforce report   6564   Hampshire County Council

Inclusion and wellbeing 

Two specific themes for development during the year have been Inclusion and Wellbeing. 
Our Inclusion, Diversity and Wellbeing Survey took place in May 2021. In it we asked 
about issues relating to organisational culture, access to employee support, experiences 
of incidents in the workplace, flexible working, and the COVID-19 vaccination programme. 
4,885 colleagues took part (38% of the Council’s workforce). The survey covered areas 
included in the 2018 Inclusion and Diversity and 2019 Wellbeing surveys, to help understand 
how the Council has changed over the last few years. 

Overall, the results were positive – particularly around staff wellbeing. Results from the survey 
have helped inform the Inclusion, Diversity and Wellbeing priorities shown on page 95.

Our Wellbeing Programme is significant, developing well and receiving positive feedback 
from managers and staff across the organisation. It continues to support organisational 
recovery from COVID-19, as well as develop options for the ongoing support and delivery of 
wellbeing interventions across the organisation into the future. 

Following on from Let’s talk race which we launched in 2020, we delivered Let’s talk being 
disabled sessions in 2021 and will continue with Let’s talk about LGBT+ and Let’s talk about 
Gender throughout 2022.

Apprenticeships 

Apprenticeships in the Council continue to grow, providing skills development and 
training pathways that benefits departmental service areas and employee professional 
development.

Since the introduction of the Apprenticeship Levy in 2017, the Council has enrolled over 
a 1,000 staff onto 100 different types of apprenticeships that include programmes for 
business managers, social workers, solicitors, care services, construction, finance, digital, 
catering and many more. The Council has been able to use apprenticeship opportunities  
to attract new talent to the organisation.

Although there was a slight decline in apprenticeship starts in 2020 due to the pandemic, 
the Council apprenticeship programme has seen a sharp recovery over last year with 200 
new apprentice starts in this reporting period. This is close to pre-pandemic levels and 
equates to circa £2m investment in skills development that we have committed from the levy. 

In the last year, 184 apprentices successfully completed their programmes, which means 
there are now newly qualified team, project and operations managers, finance assistants, 
software developers, food production, care workers staff applying their trade and sharing 
their knowledge across the Council. 

Progression data for the 45 participants who completed Firefly cohorts eight and nine  
in 2021, shows that:

 ● 15% (seven) moved up a pay grade, compared to 7% of staff in grades E-G.  

 ● 22% (ten) from Firefly eight and nine received a total of £26,250 in Special Recognition 
Payments (SRPs) in the 12 months since completing the programme. Equivalent to £2,625 
per recipient. This compares with 17% for E-G grades who received SRPs – averaging 
£2,185 per recipient.  

 ● Only 8% (four participants) of Firefly eight and nine cohorts have left the Council within 
the last 12 months, compared to 12% for E-G grades.

An important element of the TLP and Firefly development programmes is the opportunity 
for participants to continuously apply their learning from the programme to a specific 
workplace challenge. At the end of the programme, they review the qualitative and 
quantitative impact of the anticipated or realised benefits of their workplace challenge. 

The great variety of these projects reflects the wide-ranging areas of service Council 
employees are engaged in, delivering outcomes which positively impact individuals, teams, 
service-users and collectively the organisation overall. These have included projects to 
progress climate change initiatives, delivering service improvements, increasing service-
user satisfaction, and developing digital solutions.

In terms of the wider development packages, we have delivered Open courses attended by 
over 1,065 staff and managers – average 97% satisfaction rate across the year. Examples 
include Impact of your personal style and an Introduction to coaching. The number of these 
courses available has increased on last year due to the easing of restrictions from the 
pandemic. 

We have also delivered uniquely designed programmes to support organisational priorities, 
5,526 places have been attended by staff – team days, coaching, bespoke topics, 
wellbeing briefings. 

As we have previously reported, our Valuing Performance framework is another way in 
which we seek to develop our staff, providing a structure, guidance, and support to enable 
our people to set stretching targets and access the development needed to achieve. 

Our investment in the development of our people has remained throughout this 
reporting year with staff provided with opportunities to attend learning and development 
interventions designed for in-person or virtual delivery. This has helped ensure staff can 
work more effectively and efficiently and provided new opportunities to benefit from 
reconnecting and engaging with colleagues’ face to face.

P
age 49



Workforce report   6766   Hampshire County Council

Reward and 
recognise

P
age 50



Workforce report   6968   Hampshire County Council

Headcount Number of SRPs Percentage

12,655 2,212 17.47%

Total SRPs in year and end of year for 2021

We reward and recognise our people in all sorts of ways, formally and informally and it is 
with pride that we can repeat that which has been said before; that at the heart of this is the 
value and belief that we have in our workforce, in the commitment and loyalty they show to 
their work and communities they serve.

In addition to our salary and expense arrangements, as part of its Employee Value 
Proposition the Council has a framework (Valuing Performance) in place that enables 
managers to measure performance and subsequently reward and recognise staff where 
exceptional performance is evident. Reward for exceptional performance is typically through 
a Special Recognition Payment (SRP). For the period January to December 2021, 17.47% of 
staff received SRPs for exceptional performance.

The performance of staff across the organisation continues to be high, with 99% of staff 
achieving successful and exceptional performance. 

There has been an increase in the number of exceptional performers recognised through 
SRPs this year, and this continues to be largely because of their performance in the context 
of the COVID-19 pandemic. 

Adults’ Health and Care increased its available workforce capacity by incentivising staff 
using SRPs. For example, in HCC Care staff able to commit to working additional hours were 
paid a lump sum payment that could be scaled up or down to ensure part-time workers 
were not disadvantaged. Adults’ Health and Care was also able to recognise the incredible 
discretionary effort of its staff through both mid-year and end of year SRPs that were 
awarded to staff to celebrate their contribution to the work of the department.

The below table shows the total in-year and end of year SRP figures for 2021:

Ensuring the efforts of our people are recognised

Reward and recognise

Detailed data on SRPs awarded throughout 2021 enables us to summarise as follows: 

 ● Grade: There is an even distribution across all grades indicating a lack of bias when 
recognising individuals’ exceptional performance.  

 ● Ethnicity: Noting that we do not have 100% declaration rates of the staff who have 
recorded their ethnicity, our data indicates that a higher proportion of those identifying 
within the ethnic minority groups were awarded an SRP than those in the group 
identifying as white.  

 ● Age profile: The number of staff being awarded an SRP over the year is evenly 
distributed across the age ranges. The group receiving the fewest SRPs, though  
marginal is in the under 30-year-old age group.  

 ● Full-time/part-time profile: There is little differential between full and part time  
workers being recognised for exceptional performance which is in line with evidence  
that performance is unrelated to the number of hours worked. 

In terms of salary, we know that there are more women than men in the top 5% of  
earners which hides the gender pay gap within the Council. However, whilst the Gender 
Pay Gap report published in March 2022 shows an overall gender pay gap of 16% in favour 
of men, as shown in the table below, the profile of our workforce can go some way to 
explaining this.

As previously reported, most of the workforce is female, with this being most pronounced 
at the lower grades. The gender pay gap of 16% is not because of paying men more than 
women for the same or equivalent work, our job evaluation scheme provides an objective 
and gender-neutral framework to evaluate the jobs that are carried out within the Council. 
The Council continues to deliver services that other equivalent organisations have either 
outsourced or no longer provide e.g. catering in schools. If these services were excluded 

Grade Headcount in grade Percentage

Grades A-D 6,904 17.77%

Grades E-G 4,903 17.03%

Grades H+ 858 17.48%

Total SRPs in year and end of year for 2021 across grade

The below table shows that SRPs are evenly distributed across grades:

P
age 51



Workforce report   7170   Hampshire County Council

This year’s figures continue to show that most of our highest earners (top 5%) are white  
with ethnic minority representation in this group below the profile of our representative  
area of 8.3%.

Our data tells us that of our top 5% of earners, those with disabilities are representative  
of our wider workforce profile and again this has not changed since last year. 

Pay 2019-2020 2020-2021

Mean gender pay gap in hourly pay  
(men currently earn more) 15.8% 16.0%

Median gender pay gap in hourly pay  
(men currently earn more) 16.3% 16.3%

Bonus

Mean bonus gender pay gap  
(men currently earn more) 14.2% 6.9%

Median bonus gender pay gap 0.0% 10.0%

Proportion of males receiving a bonus payment 11.2% 14.8%

Proportion of females receiving a bonus payment 8.3% 13.9%

Gender pay gap overview

from the data, the Council would have a gender pay gap of 10.4%. As such, the gender pay 
gap exists because of the workforce profile – the roles which men and women undertake 
within the Council, and the salaries that these roles attract. 

Within our gender pay gap report for 2020 to 2021 we have reported how we continue to 
work to reduce our gender pay gap. 

The Council’s gender pay gap figures 2020 to 2021 are set out as follows:

P
age 52



Workforce report   7372   Hampshire County Council

Progress  
and perform

P
age 53



Workforce report   7574   Hampshire County Council

As referenced in the previous section Reward and recognise, the Valuing Performance 
framework supports our people (managers and staff) in having meaningful conversations 
about performance.

In addition to rewarding exceptional performance there is a small proportion of  
under performance. As well as dealing with this through management measures,  
which include support and development, incremental progression can also be withheld 
where appropriate.

Managers tackle poor performance and misconduct issues in accordance with the  
Council’s misconduct or performance policies. During 2021 to 2022 there were 39 new 
performance cases which is 0.27 % of the total workforce and 87 new misconduct cases 
(0.60%) across departments. 

This was a slight decrease in the total number of cases compared to 2020 to 2021 when 
there were 46 new performance cases and 106 new misconduct cases.

Performance

In a high performing organisation such as ours we would not expect to see high numbers 
of formal performance management cases and our policies support the informal resolution 
of issues, including performance, where it is possible to do so. Of the performance cases 
resolved within 2021 to 2022, 46.15% resulted in informal action.

There were three dismissals due to performance during 2021 to 2022 and an additional 
five employees left by way of a mutual/settlement agreement or resignation mid-way during 
the process, this is a slight decrease compared to 11 employees during 2020 to 2021. The 
following table provides detail of the resolution categories for all performance cases. 

Having regular robust conversations about performance  
to support growth and meet the needs of the business

Progress and perform

The Council’s Managing performance policy allows for the contract of employment to be 
ended by mutual agreement between the employee and Hampshire County Council. Whilst 
the Council seeks to support an employee to improve their performance, it recognises 
that in some situations this may not be the employee’s desire. A mutual agreement is most 
likely to be reached where an employee is unlikely to achieve the required standards for 
their role, or unlikely to achieve the required standard in a reasonable time frame and the 
employee does not wish to participate in a formal process.

Members of staff who are being managed because of poor performance will have their 
incremental salary progression withheld i.e. they will not progress to the next salary step 
point for their grade. In April 2021, 15 members of staff who were not at the top of their 
pay grade had their incremental salary progression withheld, this is on a par with the 16 
members of staff who had their salary progression withheld in April 2020.

Dismissal

Formal warning

Informal advice

Resignation

Mutual/settlement agreement

Resolution category Number of cases Percentage

Dismissal 3 8%

Formal warning 13 33%

Informal advice 18 46%

Resignation 3 8%

Mutual/settlement agreement 2 5%

Total 39 100%

Resolution categories of managing performance cases 2021 to 2022

P
age 54



Workforce report   7776   Hampshire County Council

Behavioural

Breach of data protection

Criminal allegation

Failure to follow instruction, policy, 
procedure, or professional code
Financial abuse

Inappropriate Physical contact
/use of force
Other

Risk to children/adult

Resolution category Number of cases Percentage

Behavioural 24 28%

Breach of data protection 3 3%

Criminal allegation 8 9%

Failure to follow instruction, 
policy, procedure, or  
professional code

43 49%

Financial abuse 4 5%

Inappropriate Physical  
contact/use of force 2 2%

Other 1 1%

Risk to children/adult 2 2%

Total 87 100%

Resolution categories of managing misconduct cases 2021 to 2022

Misconduct 

Of the 87 new misconduct cases the majority (49.43%) were due to failing to follow 
instruction, policy, procedure, or a professional code of conduct. The following table 
provides detail of the reason categories for the misconduct cases. 

36 (37.89%) of resolved formal misconduct cases resulted in informal action, in comparison 
to 53 (48.62%) in 2020 to 2021. There were six dismissals due to misconduct during 2021  
to 2022 and an additional 17 cases were resolved by way of a mutual/settlement 
agreement, or they resigned mid-way during the process. 

Attendance management 

In respect of tackling absence and attendance issues, managers work in accordance  
with the Council’s attendance management policies. During 2021 to 2022 there were 146 
new attendance cases across Council Departments. This is a reduction from 163 cases in 
2020 to 2021.

Absence and attendance cases have been a mix of long term (66.44%), short term (21.92%) 
as well as health cases where the employee is not absent from work (11.64%), but where 
action and/or adjustments are required to sustain their attendance. The profile of absence 
cases is consistent with the previous year which was long term (74.85%), short term 
(15.95%), and health cases where the employee is not absent from work (7.98%).

Of the absence cases which were concluded in 2021 to 2022 (140), 59 cases (42.14%) 
resulted in the employee ending their employment with the Council. This includes 31 who 
left by way of a mutual/settlement agreement, 24 resignations as employees made the 
decision to leave the Council rather than undergo the full formal attendance management 
process, and four retirements. Whilst this is a decrease in overall cases when compared 
to 2020 to 2021, there was a slight increase in the percentage of staff who left the 
organisation from 39.3% to 42.14%. The following table provides detail of the resolution 
categories for all attendance cases.

P
age 55



Workforce report   7978   Hampshire County Council

The Council’s average absence rate for 2021 to 2022 increased from last year from 3%  
to 4% (Appendix three). The total estimated productivity cost of sickness absence has 
increased from last year of circa £8m to circa £10m. The increase in sickness absence 
could be attributed to employees returning to the workplace and more illnesses being 
transmitted, along with operations and non-urgent procedures resuming. In addition, 
COVID-19 remains a top reason for absence. 

Dismissal

Formal warning

Informal advice given

Mutual/settlement agreement

Other

Resignation

IHR or retirement

Return to work

Resolution category Number of cases Percentage

Dismissal 4 3%

Formal warning 10 7%

Informal advice given 47 34%

Mutual/settlement agreement 31 22%

Other 1 1%

Resignation 24 17%

IHR or retirement 4 3%

Return to work 19 14%

Total 140 100%

Resolution categories of attendance cases 2021 to 2022

A significant proportion of absence still relates to mental health and highlights the need  
for a continued focus in this area. According to the CIPD Health and Wellbeing Report 
(2022, p. 28) ‘The public sector is also more likely to include stress among their top  
causes of short- and long-term absence’ along with musculoskeletal injuries. 

Resolution category Percentage

Anxiety/stress 20%

COVID-19 20%

Muscular/skeletal 13%

Operation/post operation 10%

Infection 9%

Eye/ear/nose/mouth/dental problems 9%

Other 7%

Abdominal 6%

Headache/migraine 3%

Women’s health 3%

Top 10 sickness reasons

As expected, one of the top reasons for absence across the Council continues to be 
COVID-19, the other most common reasons for absence remain consistent with previous 
years, as follows: 

P
age 56



Workforce report   8180   Hampshire County Council

Resolution category Number of cases Percentage

Informal advice/resolution 13 27%

Not upheld 19 39%

Partially upheld 6 12%

Settlement agreement/ 
resignation 10 20%

Withdrawn 1 2%

Total 49 100%

Resolution categories of resolving workplace issues 2021 to 2022

Resolving workplace issues 

No matter how successful the organisation is there are issues that prompt an employee  
to submit a ‘grievance’ through the Council’s Resolving Workplace Issues policy.

During 2021 to 2022 there were 46 new ‘resolving workplace issue’ cases across Council 
departments. This is similar to the number of cases (44) in the previous year. 

Of the 46 new ‘resolving workplace issue’ cases in 2021 to 2022 the majority (17) related 
to working relationship issues with colleagues and management. This is in line with 
2020 to 2021 when there were 16 cases due to relationship issues with colleagues and 
management. In 2021 to 2022 a further five cases (down from 10 in 2020 to 2021) were 
categorised as related to bullying or harassment and seven were because of issues with  
the working environment compared to six cases in 2020 to 2021. 

Of those resolving workplace issues cases that were resolved within 2021 to 2022 (49),  
19 (38.78%) were not upheld. The following table provides detail of the resolution categories 
for all workplace issues cases. 

As referenced in page 36 the Council published its Zero Tolerance Statement in July 2021, 
we seek to ensure zero tolerance of harassment, discrimination, bullying and abuse and will 
respond promptly to any incidents of these.

Informal advice/resolution

Not upheld

Partially upheld

Settlement agreement/resignation

Withdrawn

P
age 57



Workforce report   8382   Hampshire County Council

Retain  
and exit

P
age 58



Workforce report   8584   Hampshire County Council

As with all organisations we know there are several factors that impact on staff  
retention, including: 

 ● Employee engagement: ensuring that our people are engaged and listened to  
on the full range of organisational issues.   

 ● Health and wellbeing: ensuring that our people’s health, safety and well-being are  
taken seriously, and that support is available for staff across the wide range of needs  
in this space. 

 ● Reward and benefits and development opportunities: both referenced in  
previous sections. 

Equally of course it is important that the Council has appropriate mechanisms  
in place to support our people to move on when performance does not meet  
organisational expectations.

External turnover for the last 12 months averaged 17% which is an increase from 11% 
reported last year, however, a slight increase on 15% reported in 2019 to 2020 pre 
pandemic. A contributing factor will be the pandemic where staff have remained in their 
roles for several reasons and now have chosen alternative employment outside of the 
Council, which as detailed below is the most common reason for leaving. According to 
the CIPD’s Labour Outlook Report (Winter 2021 to 2022, p. 11) ‘41% of employers reported 
increased staff turnover or difficulty with retaining employees over the last six months.’

During this year there have been 2,141 external leavers which is an increase in number of 
leavers compared to last year, an increase as highlighted, which is likely to be contributed 
to the pandemic. 

Of these leavers, 80% (1,710) were female. 8% (168) were from ethnic minorities and 5%  
(106) had declared a disability which is broadly comparable to our workforce data overall. 

The reasons for leaving are shown in the following table. 

Encouraging our people to stay and learning from those who leave

Retain and exit

Of the total leavers, the largest proportion left for ‘voluntary reasons’ these include for 
family commitments, moving away and health.

Out of leavers who left for voluntary reasons (258) 16% completed the leaver questionnaire. 
Work will continue within departments to encourage more leavers to complete the 
questionnaire before they leave.

469 leavers (24%) left within 12 months of joining, with 192 (41%) of these leaving to go  
to roles in other organisations; and 147 (31%) recording a range of reasons such as resigning 
due to health, returning to full time education, taking a career break, moving away, or simply 
did not give a reason. 22 (5%) left because of temporary contracts ending and 31 (7%) 
recorded a reason of dissatisfaction. This is the same as last year’s 24% of employees  
who left within 12 months of joining.

136 leavers (7%) left in the first three months of employment, with 38 (28%) of these leaving 
to go to roles in other organisations; and 54 (40%) recording a range of reasons such as 
resigning due to health, returning to full time education, taking a career break, moving away, 
or simply did not give a reason. Two (1.5%) left as a result of temporary contracts ending and 
19 (14%) recorded a reason of dissatisfaction.

External leaver reasons External leavers

Death in service 16

Dismiss 90

Other 105

Redundancy 45

Resign – alternative employment 1,604

Resign – alternative local government org 32

Resign – dissatisfaction 65

Retirement 184

Total 2,141

External leaver reasons

P
age 59



Workforce report   8786   Hampshire County Council

All resigning employees are encouraged to have a leaver interview unless they choose  
to opt out. Departments respond and action any outcomes from these meetings. From 
those that completed the leaver questionnaire, 54% had attended a leaver interview or  
had one scheduled.

Where staff were asked which statements have most contributed to their decision to  
leave, they could respond to multiple statements. The most popular reasons for leaving 
were stated as ‘My new role is a promotion, or an opportunity to progress my career’ (41%), 
and ‘My new role offers a higher salary’ (33%). We continue to explore ways to provide 
opportunities to develop our staff as referenced in page 47 and page 64.

14% (32) staff as opposed to 11% last year stated the reason for leaving was a workplace 
issue and 10% due to a relationship with their manager. This is an area that we will continue 
to monitor to understand trends over time and this data has enabled us to inform our 
inclusion and diversity priorities.

On 11 November 2021, the Health and Social Care Act 2008 (Regulated Activities) 
(Amendment) (Coronavirus) Regulations 2021 came into effect. The new law said that all 
staff entering a Care Quality Commission registered care home need to be fully vaccinated, 
unless medically exempt or within a defined exemption. A Mandatory Vaccination Policy and 
supporting guidance were published to provide information. Unfortunately, we have lost 
employees due to this legislative requirement. However, on 15 March 2022 the legislation 
was revoked and having a Coronavirus vaccination was no longer a mandatory requirement 
for our staff.

1. Ability to take annual leave
2. Amount of annual leave
3. Expenses e.g. mileage/sight test
4. I feel a valued employee of the County Council
5. I felt able to raise issues and problems openly
6. I felt career progression was fairly managed within the organisation
7. I felt supported by my line manager
8. I found meetings with my manager useful and meaningful
9. I had clear goals and objectives
10. I had regular 1-2-1 conversations with my manager
11. I had Valuing Performance conversations with my manager throughout the year
12. I would consider working for the County Council in the future
13. I would recommend the County Council as an employer to family/friends
14. My goals and objectives were achievable
15. My workload has been manageable
16. There have been opportunities for me to develop
17. Working flexibly

Questions:
Q

ue
st

io
ns

0

Answer breakdown

20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Agree 

Disagree

Don't know

Neither agree nor disagree

Not applicable

Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4
Q5
Q6
Q7
Q8
Q9
Q10
Q11
Q12
Q13
Q14
Q15
Q16
Q17

Leaver questionnaire responses

Data from the leaver questionnaire is already starting to provide additional insight  
into the reasons that staff are leaving the Council. Overall, the staff responses to the  
survey questions have been more positive than negative with a couple of examples listed 
below with the majority of leavers feeling valued, supported and able to raise issues and 
problems openly: 

P
age 60



Workforce report   8988   Hampshire County Council

Conclusions

P
age 61



Workforce report   9190   Hampshire County Council

Develop

 ● We have continued to invest in the development of our workforce with an excess  
of 80 employees joining TLP and in excess of 100 joining Firefly. 

 ● Inclusion and Wellbeing continue to be important themes for the development  
of our people.

Onboard

 ● Circa 2,000 external new starters have been onboarded into the organisation  
with induction remaining critical to the way we welcome and familiarise them with 
the business.

 ● We continue to fill our roles through a multitude of means such as directly 
employed staff, agency workers, casual workers and contractors. 

 ● Internal candidates are more likely to be hired than external candidates. 

 ● Agency costs have increased, back to pre-pandemic levels, with usage being 
predominantly in Social Care roles and IT. C2H therefore remain key to our  
resourcing strategy. 

 ● Departmental workforce data tells us that the profile of recruitment ‘hot spots’ 
remains the same as in recent years, including, for example, care assistants, nurses, 
cooks, catering assistants and social workers.

Resource

 ● We are experiencing the same challenges in the labour market as other Hampshire 
and national employers. 
 

Attract

 ● We have seen increased advertising activity linked to the fact that COVID-19 
measures have lifted and in response to increased turnover. 

 ● Our adverts have generated less applications in this reporting year, likely linked to 
the low levels of unemployment in Hampshire and nationally. 

 ● We continue to be more attractive to the female labour market. 

 ● Our data suggests that ethnic minority applicants have been less successful 
through our selection process than those reporting as white. This is further 
emphasised at more senior levels in the organisation.

General

 ● Despite another extraordinary year for everyone, much of our organisational data 
has now reverted to being comparable to the years prior to the pandemic which 
may reinforce our sense of things ‘returning to normal’. 

 ● Headcount continues to reduce with great reductions at senior levels of the  
workforce (H+). 

 ● We have seen some increase in the numbers of people reporting to be disabled  
and those reporting to be from an ethnic minority. 

 ● Since last year, unsurprisingly, there has been an increase from 3% to 4% in time lost 
for sickness absence with COVID-19 remaining our top sickness absence reason.

P
age 62



Workforce report   9392   Hampshire County Council

Retain and exit

 ● Turnover has increased from 15% pre-pandemic to 17%, unsurprising since the CIPD 
note that 41% of employers are experiencing similar trends. 

 ● Circa 2,000 employees left our organisation, the majority for ‘voluntary reasons’ 
although still only 16% completed our Leaver Questionnaire meaning our 
understanding of ‘why’ remains relatively low. 

 ● Of our leavers, circa 450 left within their first 12 months and circa 140 within  
three months.

Progress and perform

 ● Another sign of the high-performing nature of our workforce is reflected in the fact 
that we only saw 39 new performance management cases and 87 misconduct 
cases raised in the reporting year.

Reward and recognise

 ● Formal and informal recognition remain critical to our people. 

 ● We continue to have a high-performing workforce with 99% of those directly 
employed achieving a successful or exceptional years performance. 

 ● 17% of our workforce received an SRP payment, with awards distributed evenly 
across grade, age and full-time/part-time status. More staff from an ethnic minority 
received an SRP than white colleagues.

P
age 63



Workforce report   9594   Hampshire County Council

On-ongoing actions from our previous Annual Workforce Report can be seen in Appendix 
two. We will continue to progress these actions through 2022 to 2023. A range of actions 
have become evident through this report that will be built into our existing Inclusion, 
Diversity and Wellbeing Action Plan – particularly the following:

 ● We continue to explore different ways to analyse our workforce data to understand more 
about our people. 

 ● We will continue initiatives to increase the numbers and profiles of people from protected 
characteristics groups in senior roles. 

 ● We continue to look at ways to making flexible working more accessible. 

 ● We are raising awareness and sharing information about the diversity and cultures  
of colleagues and their lived experiences. 

 ● We want to better enable colleagues to report feelings of bullying, harassment, and 
discrimination in the workplace. 

 ● We are exploring the value of a ‘conflict resolution’ approach, modelled on a restorative 
justice and alternative dispute resolution process. 

 ● We continue to embed health and wellbeing in the organisation and supporting 
managers in this area.

A further set of actions have emerged that will be progressed through our newly formed 
Strategic Workforce Planning Programme namely:

 ● Improving our attraction rates for those under the age of 25 through the development  
of appropriate interventions aimed at the post 16 labour market. 

 ● Develop our attraction strategy and Employee Value Proposition with a view to  
gaining a competitive edge in the labour market. 

 ● Better understanding our turnover data, particularly any patterns of external  
and/or internal turnover. 

 ● Review and update our Leadership and Management Development framework  
in light of emerging needs and detailed gap analysis. 

 ● Further developing our insight about the future skills and workforce needs of our organisation.

Next steps

P
age 64



Workforce report   9796   Hampshire County Council

Appendices

P
age 65



Workforce report   9998   Hampshire County Council

Appendix one
Delivery 
capacity

Regional 
sector led 

improvement 
to other LAs

District 
Councils

Town  
and Parish 
Councils

PSP

NHS 
commissioners 
and providers

HIOW ICS 
and 

Frimley ICS

Local 
Enterprise 

Partnerships

Internal 
Audit 

Partnership

Schools

Customers

Delivery 
capacity

Multi  
Agency 
Teams

• Reading Hampshire Property Partnership
• Southampton City Council
• Isle of Wight Council
• Devon County Council
• Bournemouth, Christchurch and Poole Council
• Manchester City Council
• Southern Construction Framework

• Hampshire Constabulary
• Hampshire Council for Voluntary Services
• Hampshire Association of Local Councils
• Hampshire Fire and Rescue Service
• South Downs National Park
• EM3 LEP
• Solent NHS Trust and West Hampshire CCG

• Hampshire Constabulary
• Hampshire Fire and Rescue Service
• Oxfordshire County Council
•  The Royal Borough of Kensington 

and Chelsea
• City of Westminster
• Hamersmith and Fulham
• Hillingdon, London
• West Sussex County Council

Our extending organisation | 2021
A graphic of Hampshire County Council’s income generating partnerships

Property Services

Argenti/PA 
Consulting

Community Equipment Services Deputyship

• Winchester City Council
• East Hampshire District Council
• Havant Borough Council
• New Forest District Council
• West Sussex County Council
• Epsom & Ewell Borough Council
• Reigate & Banstead Borough Council
• Trandridge District Council
• Mole Valley District Council
• Surrey OPCC and Police Force
• Sussex OPCC & Police Force
• Waverley Borough Council

Children’s 
Services

Corporate 
Resources

Economy, 
Transport and 
Environment

Culture, 
Communities and 
Business Services

Adults’ Health 
and Care 
Services

IBC
and

Pension 
Services

Legal 
Services

The estimated income value of these partnerships to Hampshire County Council is £114m gross (including schools)

P
age 66



Workforce report   101100   Hampshire County Council

Reported progress on the actions agreed  
in the 2019 to 2020 and 2020 to 2021  
Annual Workforce Reports

Appendix twoP
age 67



Workforce report   103102   Hampshire County Council

Action: Review and update Departmental and Corporate People Strategies.

Status: Ongoing. This work will progress in 2022 after engagement with HR Business 
Partners and Departments.

Action: With the rise in the number of applications being received, we want to  
explore if the quality of applications received has increased. 

Status: Complete. Whilst we continue to monitor the ‘end to end’ recruitment process 
we have not specifically addressed the challenge of understanding the ‘quality’ 
of applications. We know application numbers are more aligned to pre-pandemic 
numbers with less applicants being shortlisted than during the pandemic. This may 
point to improved quality due to changes to the employment market, but beyond that 
we are light on evidence. 

Action: With internal applicants making up 8.6% of those shortlisted, over the  
course of the year we will be interested in monitoring internal staff career progression.

Status: Ongoing. We continue to explore ways to monitor career progression as 
there are different ways to approach this. Further exploration is planned to look at 
where internal candidates are moving ‘from – to’ to better understand impact across 
the organisation. Progress of staff following completion of Firefly and TLP has been 
reported within this report.

Action: Ongoing considerations of the impact of COVID-19 on our people  
and the organisation will be continued to be monitored and reported. 

Status: Complete and incorporated into business-as-usual activities.

Actions from 2021 to 2022 Annual Workforce Report

Action: Actively explore further ways in which to reduce sickness absence across  
the Council.

Status: Ongoing and incorporated into business-as-usual activities.

Action: Consideration of attraction and resourcing approaches for the local  
labour market with disabilities and for those under the age of 25 – pursuing actions  
as agreed by the Inclusion and Diversity Steering Group.

Status: Ongoing and confirmed as an Inclusion and Diversity priority in 2022.

Action: Encouraging all employees to share personal information about their  
disability, ethnicity, gender identity, religion and sexual orientation. 

Status: Ongoing and incorporated into business-as-usual activities and linked to an 
Inclusion and Diversity priority in 2022.

Action: The development of ‘conflict resolution’ with a view to implementing  
in the Council.

Status: Previously put on hold due to other priorities during the pandemic, this action 
has now confirmed as an Inclusion and Diversity priority in 2022.

Actions from 2019 to 2020 Annual Workforce Report

P
age 68



Workforce report   105104   Hampshire County Council

Adults’ 
Health  
and Care

Children’s 
Services CCBS Corporate 

Services ETE Total

Apr 2021 4.2% 2.8% 2.2% 1.9% 1.4% 2.8%

May 2021 4.2% 3.3% 2.3% 2.1% 1.6% 3%

Jun 2021 4.9% 3.3% 3% 2.3% 1.8% 3.4%

Jul 2021 5.1% 3.2% 3.2% 2.6% 2% 3.5%

Aug 2021 5% 2.9% 2.1% 2.1% 1.9% 3.1% 

Sep 2021 5.7% 3.6% 3.3% 2% 1.8% 3.8%

Oct 2021 6.9% 4.7% 4% 2.5% 2.5% 4.7%

Nov 2021 6.6% 4.4% 4.8% 2.8% 2.6% 4.8%

Dec 2021 6.4% 4.1% 4% 2.2% 2.8% 4.4%

Jan 2022 6.7% 4.3% 4.4% 2.7% 2.4% 4.6%

Feb 2022 6.3% 4% 3.9% 1.9% 2.6% 4.2%

Mar 2022 6.6% 4.4% 4.6% 3.3% 3% 4.8%

Total 5.7% 3.8% 3.5% 2.4% 2.2% 3.9%

Percentage of working hours lost

Appendix three

P
age 69



Workforce report   107106   Hampshire County Council

Department
16-24

25-34

35-44

45-54

55-64

65+

Adults’ Health
and Care

Children’s
Services

CCBS Corporate
Services

ETE

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f h
ea

dc
ou

nt

0

15% 15%
23% 19%18%

23% 25%

26%
21%23%

30% 28%

27%

23%27%

26% 25%
17%

23%24%

Age profile across departments

Appendix four

P
age 70



Workforce report   109108   Hampshire County Council

Department
No data provided

Ethnic minority

Prefer not to say

White

Adults’ Health
and Care

Children’s
Services

CCBS Corporate
Services

ETE

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f h
ea

dc
ou

nt

0

78% 90%

5%

93%

18% 8%

92%84%

3% 4%

Ethnicity profile across departments

Appendix five

P
age 71



110   Hampshire County Council

hants.gov.uk

Published 2022

ANNUAL WORKFORCE 
REPORT 2021 TO 2022 

Page 72

https://www.hants.gov.uk/


 

 

HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

Report 
 

 
Contact name: Stephanie Randall 

Tel:  0370 779 1776 Email: stephanie.randall@hants.gov.uk 
 

Purpose of this Report 
1. The purpose of this report is to provide the Employment in Hampshire County 

Council Committee (EHCC) with an update on the County Councils joint 
venture agency, Hampshire & Kent Commercial Services LLP (trading as 
Connect2Hampshire). 

Recommendations 
2. The EHCC is asked to note the update for Connect2Hampshire in relation to 

2021/22, including its performance during this period in relation to the provision 
of temporary agency workers to the County Council. 

Executive Summary 
3. Following Connect2Hampshire (C2H) completing its third year of trading, this 

report provides EHCC with an update on the agency’s performance during 
2021/22, including the anticipated profit share for the County Council in respect 
of the financial year ended 31st March 2022.  

Background and context  
4. Connect2Hampshire (C2H) is the trading name of the County Councils joint 

venture agency (Hampshire & Kent Commercial Services LLP), which launched 
in April 2019. 2021/22 has seen the completion of the agencies third year of 
operation, during which time the LLP has continued to support the County 
Council through the challenges of the COVID-19 pandemic.  

5. The LLP itself is underpinned by a Members Agreement between Hampshire 
County Council and Kent Commercial Services Ltd, who each own 50% of the 
LLP. In addition, a Joint Accountability Statement sets out the basis on which 
the LLP will provide agency managed services into the County Council.  

Committee: Employment in Hampshire County Council 

Date: 7 July 2022 

Title: Connect2Hampshire – Update on Hampshire’s Temporary Staffing 
Agency 

Report from: Director HR, Organisational Development and Communications and 
Engagement 

Page 73

Agenda Item 7



 

 

 
Governance and Assurance  

6. The leadership and management of C2H is governed through the LLP Board 
which meets quarterly, and the Executive Board which meets monthly to review 
operational performance. The Executive Board focuses on a range of matters 
including: 

  Operational and HR performance highlights - including delivery against 
any initiatives implemented, the LLPs response to any service issues, as 
well as team performance measures and metrics; 

  The financial health of the LLP - helping to track the in-year financial 
performance against the budget set for different areas of supply, as well as 
the overall financial health and commercial sustainability of the LLP; 

  Performance against C2H’s 3-year rolling business plan and agreement 
of any changes to priorities within this – the business plan sets out the 
history of the joint venture and the business model adopted, the 
governance arrangements, C2H’s vision and values, and any strategic 
assumptions. It is reviewed each year to agree the future strategy and 
business plan objectives, as well as to reflect the current market and 
potential opportunities to further support the County Council, and the 
financial plan for that period.  

  Other assurance themes – including a regular review of the LLPs risk 
register, and the outcome of any internal audits completed (by Kent County 
Council on behalf of the LLP) and any proposed management actions. 
Copies of these internal audit reports are also shared with the County 
Council’s internal audit team for assurance purposes.  
 

7. As part of this monthly Executive Board meeting, the Board Member and 
Senior Board Officer representing HCC also have the opportunity to note any 
successes, or to raise any particular areas of concern, with a view to the Board 
being able to consider and agree any interventions to address these.  

8. Both boards are considered to be operating effectively, and good relationships 
have developed between the partner representatives. As such, the County 
Council remains in a strong position to influence the direction of travel for the 
LLP (ensuring this aligns with the original objectives for investing in the creation 
of the agency – i.e., quality and continuity of service provision, over financial 
profit), and to develop a robust culture of continuous improvement in terms of 
the agency services provided into the County Council.  

 
Changes in LLP Board and Executive Board Membership 

9. In July 2021, following Carolyn Williamson’s appointment as Chief Executive of 
the County Council, the position of Board Member of the LLP (representing the 
County Council’s interests) passed to Jac Broughton, Director of HR, OD, 
Communications and Engagement.  

Page 74



 

 

10. There have been no further changes to the Board Member representing the 
Commercial Services Group interests; this remains Matt Johnson, who took up 
the position of Chief Executive for Commercial Services in mid-March 2021.  

11. In addition, the existing Senior Board Officers who sit on the LLPs Executive 
Board remain in place (representing both Commercial Services Group and the 
County Council).  

Performance update  
12. During 2021/22 the County Council spent approximately £29.8m through C2H 

on agency provision, demonstrating the scale of services received. This 
represents an increase compared with previous years (£27.0m in 2019/20 and 
£27.1m in 2020/21), and this is partly due to the increased need for additional 
agency workers to support the County Council’s response to the COVID-19 
pandemic.  

13. The most significant areas of spend by the County Council continue to include 
residential and nursing care agency provision (including nurses), Qualified 
Social Workers (QSW) and IT contractors.  

14. This represents a significant level of supply from C2H into the County Council 
in these areas, but unsurprisingly they are also some of the services with the 
most significant (national) workforce challenges, impacting both our ability to 
recruit to our permanent workforce, as well as C2H’s ability to source sufficient 
supply to fully meet our current levels of demand for agency workers.  

15. The Joint Accountability Statement provides a basis on which to assess the 
high-level performance of C2H, through a set of agreed performance 
measures. These cover a range of quantitative and qualitative themes, 
including ability to fil roles, hiring manager satisfaction and candidate quality, 
completion of relevant vetting and other checks prior to commencement (e.g., 
Right to Work, DBS checks and references), and availability of C2H’s systems 
to the County Council, their supply chain, and candidates.  

16. Broadly speaking C2H are meeting all of the performance targets. The overall 
volume of roles which have been fulfilled (and the associated expenditure) 
provides a strong indication of C2H’s ability to meet the vast majority of the 
County Council’s current levels of demand, albeit it is acknowledged there are 
more challenging or harder to fill roles within this position. A good example of 
how C2H have risen to the challenge set them has been their successful 
contribution to the recruitment of the County Council’s ‘Test and Trace’ 
workforce (aka the Covid Warriors), circa 80 staff, most of which were sourced 
and provided by C2H. 

17. One of the key priorities for C2H has been to build its ‘directly sourced’ 
candidate workforce – this essentially means the LLP providing their own 
candidates to the County Council for available roles, rather than relying on 3rd 
party agencies filling these (through the framework), contributing toward service 
improvement, quality, and resilience. Good progress has continued to be made 
in this space as noted in table 1 below, in particular within directly sourced care 
roles, increasing from 14% as at Q4 last year, to 28% as at the end of Q4 this 
year (33% at Q3).  

Page 75



 

 

18. Some areas have seen marginal reductions in recent months, but not to a level 
which would indicate cause for concern. For example, other professionals has 
still performed very well (with directly sourced candidates at 74%, slightly lower 
than last year), and Care which experienced a slight reduction between Q3 of 
2021/22 (at 33%) and the end of the year (28%). 

 
Table 1 

Direct Fill as a % of total supply 
Type of supply 2020/21 – 

Q4 
2021/22 – 

Q4 RAG 

Business and Administration 87% 89%  
Care (including nurses) 14% 28%  
Qualified Social Work (Adults & 
Children’s) 26% 29%  

Other Professionals (e.g., IT) 75% 74%  
 

Challenges experienced and Connect2Hampshire’s response 
19. EHCC will be aware of the ‘national’ workforce recruitment and retention 

challenges experienced this year, and how the impact of the pandemic has 
intensified these, in particular within Social Care – residential and nursing care 
and qualified social work – but not exclusively. This has also translated in terms 
of C2H’s ability to meet our resulting levels of demand for agency workers in 
some of these harder to fill roles, to complement our permanent recruitment. 

20. It is however acknowledged that this is broader than just the LLP’s ability to 
respond. The County Council are working closely with C2H to collectively 
understand the wider landscape and evidence the numerous factors which 
drive up our demand (and the extent to which we rely on) our agency workforce 
to address any resource shortages. The intention will be to develop a more 
strategic approach to our joint workforce planning, and how we respond to such 
challenges.  
 
Initiatives supported 

21. During the year C2H have supported the County Council with several new 
initiatives; one of the main benefits of working in partnership and being a 50% 
owner of the LLP is that we can quickly influence and implement changes in 
how the agency supports our temporary workforce requirements.  Examples 
include: 

  the support for the County Councils Call2Care recruitment initiative, as well 
as the ability to begin to test a new offer of permanent recruitment services 
to the independent care sector as Connect2Care. Whilst the Connect2Care 
initiative is showing some promising signs of success, it is too early to 

Page 76



 

 

report on the performance of the pilot and the LLPs longer-term ability to 
support this. A further update will be provided in next year’s report; 

  expanding the existing managed service provider offer to support 
recruitment of Children’s Qualified Social Worker’s though delivery of a new 
model of ‘social work team’ supply. 

 
Financial Performance 
Final Profit share for 2020/21 

22. As noted to EHCC in July 2021, the LLP were estimating a net profit position 
for 2020/21 of approximately £352,000 (pre any final accounting adjustments).  

23. The final position was unchanged, and the accounts were signed off by the 
appointed External Auditors with an unqualified opinion. As a result, the County 
Council received a dividend (profit share) payment last year in relation to 
2020/21 of around £176,000 (i.e., 50% of the overall net profit). 

 
Estimated profit share for 2021/22 

24. It is too soon to confirm the final year-end net profit position for 2021/22; this 
will be declared once the accounts have been audited. However, at the time of 
writing this report, the estimated net profit is expected to be in the region of 
£500,000, an increase of approximately 42% on the final position for the 
previous year.  

25. This is a strong achievement for the LLP, solidifying financial confidence in the 
sustainability of the model. It should be noted however, that 2021/22 includes 
additional revenue for roles which are unlikely to be repeated to the same 
extent in future years – for example, the supply of Test and Trace roles.  

26. This position is also prior to any accounting adjustments or provisions that may 
need to be made as part of the final accounts prepared, so is subject to 
change. This could see the County Councils (50%) profit share to be in the 
region of up to £250,000 for 2021/22, subject to approval by the LLP Board.  

27. It is proposed that any dividend received will be allocated again to departments 
cost of change reserves, in line with the proportion of the overall revenue 
expenditure they incurred for the year.  

 
Repayment of initial loans made by partners  

28. When the LLP was initially set up, each partner contributed an initial loan of 
£230,000 (a total of £460,000). This was intended to support the initial cash 
flow requirements for mobilising the creation of the agency, as well as any pre-
trading expenditure incurred before C2H was formally launched In April 2019.  

29. Following a review by the LLP Board the loan has now been repaid in full to 
both partners, including all accrued interest due.  
LLP Business Plan  

Page 77



 

 

30. As noted earlier in the report, C2H’s operating model is underpinned by a 3-
year business plan (2020-2023), which is reviewed each year.  

31. The business plan includes further details of the Joint Venture model adopted 
for the LLP and the basis on which it operates – including the shareholding 
agreement. It also provides details of the Board Members and their 
responsibilities, as well as those of the Operational Delivery team, led by the 
Connect2Hampshire Business Manager.  

32. It sets out C2H’s aspirational vision (as agreed with the Executive Board in 
2020), as well as its core values: 

 

1 
 

33. The Business Plan is refreshed each year to agree any changes to the future 
strategy and business plan objectives, taking in to account the workforce 
market at that time, and potential (new) opportunities to further support the 
County Council, along with (indicative) potential timescales. 

34. Generally speaking, the objectives of the Business Plan have been met. 
However, throughout the course of the pandemic the focus of the Executive 
Board has very much been in the space of maintaining existing services in 
response to the pandemic and beginning to build toward recovery. As such the 
Executive Board have consciously agreed that many of the potential areas of 

 
1 Source, Connect2Hampshire Business Plan 2020-23  

Page 78



 

 

service growth which could be explored would be deferred indefinitely, aligning 
with the priorities for the County Council.  

35. The business plan will be reviewed again by the Executive Board in the coming 
months.  

 
Key priorities for 2022/23  

36. As C2H moves toward 2022/23, the LLP will continue to focus on several key 
priorities to support the County Councils requirements as we recover from the 
impacts of the pandemic.  

37. This includes continuing to embed a culture of continuous improvement within 
the C2H team and further developing and maturing the service provided to the 
County Council, as well as continuing to identify and expand on new 
opportunities and strategic initiatives which will support the sourcing of 
candidates for harder to fill roles.   

 
Climate Change  

38. Hampshire County Council utilises two decision-making tools to assess the 
carbon emissions and resilience impacts of its projects and decisions. These 
tools provide a clear, robust, and transparent way of assessing how projects, 
policies and initiatives contribute towards the County Council’s climate change 
targets of being carbon neutral and resilient to the impacts of a 2℃ temperature 
rise by 2050. This process ensures that climate change considerations are built 
into everything the Authority does.  

39. The decision for this report is essentially to note the performance of 
Connect2Hampshire during the financial year 2020/21. It does not recommend 
any changes, and as such does not have any climate change considerations. 

Conclusions 
40. Despite the continued challenges faced by Connect2Hampshire during 

2021/22, C2H has effectively supported the County Council to meet our 
temporary workforce requirements throughout the year. 

41. The LLP is expected to declare a net profit in the region of £500,000 in relation 
to the 2021/22 financial year. This could see the County Councils (50%) profit 
share to be in the region of up to £250,000. 

Page 79



 

 

REQUIRED CORPORATE AND LEGAL INFORMATION: 
 

Links to the Strategic Plan 
 
Hampshire maintains strong and sustainable economic 
growth and prosperity: 

Yes 

People in Hampshire live safe, healthy and independent 
lives: 

Yes 

People in Hampshire enjoy a rich and diverse 
environment: 

Yes 

People in Hampshire enjoy being part of strong, 
inclusive communities: 

Yes 

 
 
 

Other Significant Links 
Links to previous Member decisions:  
Title Date 
Executive Member for Policy and Resources:  
Creation of a Joint Venture Local Authority Trading Company 

17 September 
2018 

Executive Member for Policy and Resources:  
Supply of Agency Workers to Hampshire County Council 

8 March 2019 

EHCC Committee: Joint Venture with Commercial Services 
Kent Ltd to supply agency workers to Hampshire County 
Council 

13 March 2019 

Executive Member for Policy and Resources: 
Connect2Hampshire – an update on Hampshire’s Agency 

14 July 2020 
 

EHCC: Connect2Hampshire – an update on Hampshire’s 
staffing Agency 

5 July 2021 
 

Executive Member for Policy and Resources: 
Connect2Hampshire – an update on Hampshire’s Agency 

28 July 2021 
 

Direct links to specific legislation or Government Directives   
Title Date 
N/A  
  
 
 
 
Section 100 D - Local Government Act 1972 - background documents 
  
The following documents discuss facts or matters on which this report, or an 
important part of it, is based and have been relied upon to a material extent in 
the preparation of this report. (NB: the list excludes published works and any 
documents which disclose exempt or confidential information as defined in 
the Act.) 
 
Document Location 
None  

Page 80



 

9 

EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT: 
 

1. Equality Duty 
The County Council has a duty under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 (‘the Act’) to 
have due regard in the exercise of its functions to the need to: 
- Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other conduct prohibited 

by or under the Act with regard to the protected characteristics as set out in section 4 of 
the Act (age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy 
and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation); 

- Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (age, disability, gender reassignment, 
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation) and those 
who do not share it; 

- Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic 
within section 149(7) of the Act (see above) and persons who do not share it.  

Due regard in this context involves having due regard in particular to: 
- The need to remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons sharing a relevant 

protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic; 
- Take steps to meet the needs of persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic that 

are different from the needs of persons who do not share it; 
- Encourage persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic to participate in public life 

or in any other activity in which participation by such persons is disproportionally low. 

2. Equalities Impact Assessment: 
There are no changes proposed in this report. As such a further equalities impact 
assessment has not been undertaken.   

Page 81



This page is intentionally left blank



 

HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

Report 
 

Committee: Employment in Hampshire County Council 

Date: 7 July 2022 

Title: Pay, Policy and Legislation Update 

Report From: Director of HR, Organisational Development and 
Communications & Engagement  

Contact name: Nichola Andreassen 

Tel:   0370 7795597 Email: nichola.andreassen@hants.gov.uk 

Purpose of this Report 

1. The purpose of this report is to provide an update to EHCC on the 2021 and 2022 
National Pay Award. This paper also highlights the forthcoming challenges 
leading up to 2024. 

2. This paper also provides an update on newly issued Special Severance 
Payments statutory guidance, together with recommendations in respect of 
associated decision making, and potential employment related legislative 
changes.  

3. This paper provides information on the processes  relating to the appointment of 
Chief Officers and Deputy Chief Officers. 

4. By exception, this paper includes an update on the Deputy Chief Executive 
arrangements. 

Recommendation(s) 

5. That EHCC note that the National Pay Award for 2021 has been implemented.  

6. That EHCC note the current status of negotiations on the National Pay Award for 
2022 (which applies from 1 April 2022) and agree to apply the national pay award 
to EHCC Grades A-G and payments for standby and sleeping in duties, once 
national negotiations have concluded, as contractually obliged to do so.  

7. As in previous years, that EHCC agree to officers applying the same national pay 
award to EHCC Grades H and above, on the presumption that it is no more than 

Page 83

Agenda Item 8



 

4.5% over 2 years in line with budget arrangements.  If the settlement is higher 
than this, a decision will be brought back to EHCC.  

8. That EHCC note the issues that will need to be addressed for 2024. 

9. That EHCC notes the new statutory guidance on Special Severance Payments. 

10. That EHCC confirms the Chief Executive has authority to approve Special 
Severance Payments to non-Chief Officers or Deputy Chief Officers leaving the 
Council, provided that any Special Severance Payments of £20,000 and above 
but below £100,000, shall be approved in consultation with the Chairman of 
EHCC; and     

11. That EHCC recommends to the County Council that it remains the appropriate 
Committee to agree Chief Officer remuneration, for Chief Officers above Grade 
K, including individual salary offers in respect of any new Chief Officer 
appointments or severance packages for Chief Officers leaving the County 
Council and any Special Severance Payments to any Officer of £100,000 or 
more, in accordance with the Pay Statement. 

12. That EHCC notes the other updates on government consultations and potential 
employment legislation changes set out in this paper.  

13. That EHCC notes the processes for the appointment of Chief Officers and 
Deputy Chief Officers. 

14. That EHCC note the arrangements proposed in relation to the appointment of a 
Deputy Chief Executive. 

 
Executive Summary 

15. The Trade Unions have lodged their pay claim for 2022/23. This includes an 
increase of either £2,000 or the current rate of RPI (whichever is greater) plus a 
review of other terms and conditions.  

16. The Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC) published 
statutory guidance on 12 May 2022, setting out restrictions on paying ‘Special 
Severance Payments’ in Local Authorities. The effects of this together with 
recommendations for implementing it are set out in the paper.   

 

 

 

Page 84



 

Contextual information 

National Pay Claim 

17. The Trade Unions have lodged their pay claim for 2022/23. This includes a claim 
for an increase in base salary (the pay award element) and a review of other 
terms and conditions as follows; 

  An increase of either £2,000, or the current rate of RPI (whichever is greater)  

  A Covid-19 recognition payment 

  A national minimum agreement on homeworking policies for all councils and 
the introduction of a home working allowance 

  An urgent review of all mileage rates currently applying 

  A review and update of the National Joint Council terms for family leave and 
pay 

  A review of term time only contracts and consideration of retainers 

  Reduction in the working week (without loss of pay) from 37 to 35 hours 

  One additional day of annual leave 

18. The terms and conditions of staff are governed by a collective agreement, called 
the Employment in Hampshire County Council agreement (‘EHCC agreement’). 
This agreement was signed by recognised unions and the Council and has been 
in effect since 1 April 2007.   

19. The EHCC agreement requires the application of the nationally agreed pay award 
to EHCC Grades A-G inclusive. Officers will apply the finally negotiated pay 
award element to this group of staff. 

20. The pay award for Grades H and above is subject to agreement by the EHCC 
committee and consultation with Hampshire recognised Trade Unions. As in 
previous years, it is recommended that EHCC agree to officers applying the same 
national pay award to EHCC Grades H and above, on the presumption that it is 
no more than 4.5% over two years, in line with budget arrangements.  If the 
settlement is higher than this, a decision will be brought back to EHCC 

21. All other terms and conditions that are the subject of the Unions’ pay claim are 
set either by the EHCC agreement, by contracts of employment, or by local 
policies. Officers will need to review any nationally agreed changes to determine 
what impact they have, if any, for the Council’s terms and conditions or policies. 
Any changes to the EHCC agreement would require approval from EHCC and 
would be subject to negotiation with recognised Trade Unions.  

22. An update will be provided to EHCC when further details of the negotiations are 
known. 

Page 85



 

 
Pay Challenge to 2024 

23. In light of the rising rate of inflation which will impact the cost of living in 2022/23 
and beyond as well as the forecast increases to the National Living Wage over 
the next 2 years, as expected, Trade Unions have submitted a high pay claim for 
2022/23. The pay claim is in the context of ongoing significant savings targets; 
and the challenging employment market which brings increased recruitment and 
retention complexities and challenges. 

24. As such an increased budget provision of 2.5% has been set aside for the 
2022/23 pay award with the allowance returning to 2% from 2023/24. These 
amounts will be held in corporate contingencies until any pay awards are agreed. 

25. A more detailed update will be brought to a future EHCC meeting, however EHCC 
are asked to note the challenges in this area.  

Statutory Guidance on Special Severance Payments 

26. As reported to EHCC in July 2021, the government launched a consultation on 
Special Severance Payments and the Statutory Guidance has now been 
published. This guidance has been made under the Local Government Act 1999, 
and applies to all Best Value Authorities, which includes Hampshire County 
Council.  The 1999 Act places a duty on Best Value Authorities to “make 
arrangements to secure continuous improvements in the way in which its 
functions are exercised having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency 
and effectiveness”.  The County Council is required to “have regard to” the new 
guidance on Special Severance Payments in order to meet its best value 
obligations.  

27. The guidance can be found here: Statutory guidance on the making and 
disclosure of Special Severance Payments by local authorities in England - 
GOV.UK (www.gov.uk) and sets out:  

 
  What a “Special Severance Payment” is 
  the government’s view that Special Severance Payments do not usually 

represent value for money and should only be considered in exceptional 
circumstances 

  the criteria employers should consider in the exceptional circumstances in 
which it may be appropriate to make a Special Severance Payment 

  examples of the exceptional circumstances in which Special Severance 
Payments may be appropriate 

  the disclosure and reporting requirements for Special Severance Payments 

28. The guidance largely defines “Special Severance Payments” as payments made 
to a departing employee which are not statutory or contractual entitlements. 

Page 86

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/special-severance-payments/statutory-guidance-on-the-making-and-disclosure-of-special-severance-payments-by-local-authorities-in-england
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/special-severance-payments/statutory-guidance-on-the-making-and-disclosure-of-special-severance-payments-by-local-authorities-in-england
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/special-severance-payments/statutory-guidance-on-the-making-and-disclosure-of-special-severance-payments-by-local-authorities-in-england


 

Therefore, any “ex-gratia” payment reached under a settlement agreement 
between the employer and employee (e.g., to avoid legal proceedings), would be 
a Special Severance Payment. However, statutory and contractual redundancy 
payments (including pension strain charges) are not Special Severance 
Payments. 

29. The guidance sets out the government’s expectations about approvals for Special 
Severance Payments, and suggests that payments of £100,000 and above be 
approved by a vote of full council; payments of £20,000 and above, but below 
£100,000, be personally approved and signed off by the Head of Paid Service, 
with a clear record of the Leader’s approval (NB whilst the guidance suggests 
that the “approval” of the Leader is required, legally, decisions in respect of terms 
and conditions are non-executive functions and so any “approval” would need to 
be via a non-executive process); and payments below £20,000 must be approved 
according to the local authority’s scheme of delegation.  The guidance also 
suggests that where a payment is being made to the Head of Paid Service, then 
it should be approved by a panel including at least two independent persons.   

30. Previous statutory guidance in respect of Pay Policy Statements contains similar 
requirements for full Council approval of salaries on appointment over £100,000 
and severance payments over £100,000.  The County Council has already 
delegated approval of such payments to the EHCC Committee in February 2014 
and has since confirmed this annually when approving the Pay Policy Statement.  
It is recommended that for practical business reasons, the County Council should 
agree that this also includes Special Severance Payments of £100,000 and 
above.     

31. Where it is proposed to pay any Special Severance Payment to the Head of Paid 
Service, then it is recommended that before approving such payment, EHCC 
should seek the views of at least two Independent Persons appointed in 
accordance with the Localism Act 2011 and take these into account prior to 
making any decision.  

32. Under the constitution, the Chief Executive already has authority to agree 
severance payments and so can continue to approve Special Severance 
Payments below £100,000. However, in light of the new statutory guidance, it is 
recommended that before approval is given to payments above £20,000 and 
below £100,000, the Chief Executive will consult with the Chair of EHCC.   

33. The Council already has a robust process to ensure that exit payments represent 
value for money. Officers have reviewed this process in light of the new guidance 
to ensure that it remains compliant and also to ensure that the recommended 
elements in respect of economy, efficiency and effectiveness are properly 
considered in all determinations regarding severance payments. 

34. The Council also has robust processes in place to ensure it complies with its 
transparency obligations in respect of publishing information and data.  Again, 

Page 87



 

these processes have been reviewed and will be updated to ensure the 
disclosure and reporting requirements in the new guidance are met. 

35. Officers understand that this guidance is unconnected to ongoing discussions 
about exit reforms, such as the intention to limit exit payments to £95k. The latest 
update on this change was provided to EHCC in March 2021. The government 
are expected to come forward with proposals in this area, however there are no 
known timescales. 

 
Appointment of Chief Officers and Deputy Chief Officers 

36. Under the constitution, Members have responsibility for the appointment of 
Chief Officers and Deputy Chief Officers, essentially this covers the 
appointment of CMT Members and Departmental Management Teams.  

37. The process (the steps we undertake to fill a position) for engaging with 
Members, and ultimately for the appointment of a Chief or Deputy Chief 
Officers, varies slightly depending on the attraction strategy being deployed and 
for the purposes of transparency and clarity we have now recorded a separate 
process for each of the main attraction strategies as follows (with processes 
attached in Appendices 1-6):  

  Appendix 1 - Chief Executive recruitment – via a search agency 

  Appendix 2 - Chief Officer/Deputy Chief Officer – via a search agency 

  Appendix 3 - Chief Officer/Deputy Chief Officer – via an external advert 
(no search agency) 

  Appendix 4 - Chief Officer/Deputy Chief Officer – via an internal advert 

  Appendix 5 - Chief Officer/Deputy Chief Officer – Interim appointment to 
Permanent (no advert) 

  Appendix 6 - Chief Officer/Deputy Chief Officer – via an interim/acting 
up arrangement to Chief Officer/Deputy Chief Officer 

38. The Monitoring Officer has confirmed that each process is fully compliant with 
the Constitution 

39. Whilst any previous recruitment activity for Chief Officers and Deputy Chief 
Officers has been compliant with the Constitution, we have had some feedback 
about the level of engagement and influence that Members feel they have in 
these processes and therefore we have sought to ensure that in each process 
we include the Leader and the Member Panel (as appointed by the Leader) at 
an earlier point, and seek to thereon keep them informed as the process is 
progressed  It is our intention that this will support a greater understanding of 
the applicant pool and enable more meaningful Member input to the selection 
process. 

Page 88



 

40. The updated processes have been agreed with Carolyn as Chief Executive, the 
Leader, Deputy Leader, the Leader of the Opposition and the Chairman of 
EHCC.  As already mentioned, all processes have also been agreed with the 
Monitoring Officer.   

41. EHCC are asked to note the changes in the relevant recruitment processes. 
 

Deputy Chief Executive Arrangements 

42. Cabinet at its meeting in April 2009 approved the principle of a Deputy Chief 
Executive to: 
   Provide managerial cover in the absence of the Chief Executive; 
   Recognise the change, nature and scope of the role of the Chief Executive in 

managing corporate change and transformation across the whole Council; 
and 

   Provide an opportunity for management development. 

43. EHCC, subsequently agreed that the future challenges post-Covid would focus 
heavily on two key strands; ensuring the continued highly performing services are 
maintained for the residents of Hampshire; and secondly, increasing the focus on 
the opportunities for sustainable Economic Growth.  To this end it was agreed 
that two Deputy Chief Executive roles would be created, one predominantly 
facing inwards and the second to be predominantly outwards facing. 

44. Following this decision however, the Chairperson of EHCC and the Leader of the 
Council agreed to an amended approach to the Deputy Chief Executive role due 
to the unforeseen personal circumstances of the Chief Executive.  These 
alternative arrangements consisted of both the Director of Adults Health and Care 
and the Director of Children’s Services sharing the Deputy Chief Executive 
responsibilities, rotating on a quarterly basis, for a period of 1 year from 1 
September 2021. 

45. The arrangements put in place from 1 September 2021 have proved to be very 
successful, with both Directors fulfilling the responsibilities of Deputy Chief 
Executive to an incredibly high standard.  To this end the Chief Executive has 
discussed with the Leader of the Council an extension of these arrangements to 
30 September 2023 with the Director of Adults Health and Care covering the first 
6 months to 31 March 2023 and the Director of Children’s Services covering the 
second half of the year. 

46. EHCC are asked to note these arrangements. 

Outstanding National Consultations and Government responses 

47. The Queen’s speech in May 2022 made no direct reference to any employment 
legislation related reforms. There are several outstanding consultations that have 

Page 89



 

been referenced in previous EHCC papers on which there are no further updates 
at this time. Appendix 7 contains a high-level summary.   

Consultation and Equalities 

48. It is not envisaged that an Equalities Impact Assessment will be required for any 
of the updates included in this paper. 

Climate Change Impact Assessment 

49. Hampshire County Council utilises two decision-making tools to assess the 
carbon emissions and resilience impacts of its projects and decisions.  These 
tools provide a clear, robust, and transparent way of assessing how projects, 
policies and initiatives contribute towards the County Council’s climate change 
targets of being carbon neutral and resilient to the impacts of a 2℃ temperature 
rise by 2050. This process ensures that climate change considerations are built 
into everything the Authority does. 

Climate Change Adaptation and Carbon Mitigation 

50. The carbon mitigation tool and climate change adaptation tools were not 
applicable on this occasion because the decision relates to a programme that is 
strategic/administrative in nature. 

Conclusions 

51. The April 2021 pay award was implemented in March 2022 payroll, backdated to 
1 April 2021. 

52. The recommendations in this paper will provide authority to implement the pay 
award for Grades H and above, where certain conditions described in paragraph 
16 are met. This will prevent any unnecessary delays to consulting on and 
subsequently paying the award once the national position on the pay award is 
settled. 

53. The recommendations in this paper will ensure that the Council is compliant with 
the Statutory Guidance on Special Severance Payments, ensuring continued 
appropriate scrutiny of severance packages 

54. Monitoring consultations and announcements on legislative changes or new 
requirements will allow adjustments to policies and business processes to be 
implemented and therefore continued compliance.  

 
 

Page 90



 

REQUIRED CORPORATE AND LEGAL INFORMATION: 
 

Links to the Strategic Plan 
 
This proposal does not link to the Strategic Plan but potentially impacts the County 
Council’s workforce strategy 

 
 
Other Significant Links 
Direct links to specific legislation or Government Directives   
Title Date 
Pay, Policy and Legislation update  
 

March 2022 
 

  
 
 
 
Section 100 D - Local Government Act 1972 - background documents 
  
The following documents discuss facts or matters on which this report, or an 
important part of it, is based and have been relied upon to a material extent in 
the preparation of this report. (NB: the list excludes published works and any 
documents which disclose exempt or confidential information as defined in the 
Act.) 
 
Document Location 
None  

 
 

Page 91



EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT: 
 

55. Equality Duty 
The County Council has a duty under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 (‘the 
Act’) to have due regard in the exercise of its functions to the need to: 
- Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other 

conduct prohibited by or under the Act with regard to the protected 
characteristics as set out in section 4 of the Act (age, disability, gender 
reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, 
race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation); 

- Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (age, disability, 
gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex 
and sexual orientation) and those who do not share it; 

- Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (see above) and persons who 
do not share it.  

Due regard in this context involves having due regard in particular to: 
- The need to remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons sharing 

a relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic; 
- Take steps to meet the needs of persons sharing a relevant protected 

characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share 
it; 

- Encourage persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic to participate 
in public life or in any other activity in which participation by such persons is 
disproportionally low. 

56. Equalities Impact Assessment: 
It is not envisaged that an Equalities Impact Assessment will be required for 
any of the updates included in this paper 
 

 
 

Page 92



HCC- Chief Executive Recruitment (external using search firm) – 20.06.2022 
 

 

1. Chief Executive Recruitment (External using Search Organisation) 

Highlighted activity directly relates to a requirement set out in the constitution 
 
 
 

Step Activity 

 PRE-ADVERT: 

1 Chief Executive and/or HR, OD & CE to brief Leader on situation referencing; reason for recruitment, role, 
grade, salary, and intended approach. 
Leader to consider who will form the Member Appointment Panel constituted in accordance with 
Constitution, Part 3, Chapter 1 County Council Standing Orders, Para 43 and Stakeholder Panel.  
Ensure that relevant bodies are included; for example for Public Health appointments, the Faculty of 
Public Health must be included. 
 

2 Chief Executive and Director of HR, OD & CE, in consultation with the Leader, establishes timeline for 
recruitment activity and agrees with relevant search organisation, this to include anticipated activity and 
timeline including role of any necessary ‘Expert’ and anticipated Member Panel date. 
Note: timeline should include completion and agreement of Communications Plan. 
 

3 Director of HR, OD & CE and relevant search organisation agree candidate briefing pack and advert with 
Chief Executive in consultation with the Leader as appropriate. (The briefing pack will include reference to; 
duties/qualifications etc and will be made available to any applicant on request.  The briefing pack will also 
confirm that candidates and Members of the panel are prohibited from contacting each other regarding the 
appointment.) 
 

(Key note - doesn’t need to be agreed with the leader, but activity needs to happen in ‘consultation with the 
leader’ to be compliant with Constitution, Part 3, Chapter 1 County Council Standing Orders, Para 43.8) 

 
 

4 If outstanding, Chief Executive communicates their decision to leave to CMT and Leader communicates to 
Cabinet – both in strict confidence – and ahead of advert release. 

P
age 93



HCC- Chief Executive Recruitment (external using search firm) – 20.06.2022 
 

 
5 Director of HR, OD & CE to confirm with Democratic Services the arrangements for proportionate 

representation of appointment panel in accordance with Constitution, Part 3, Chapter 1 County Council 
Standing Orders, Para 43.11 

 

Director of HR, OD & CE and search organisation liaise with the Leader to determine. 
- Members Panel representation - for long listing, shortlisting and interviews. 
- Stakeholder Panel representation. 

 

6 CX and/or Director of HR, OD & CE confirm timeline and associated activities with Monitoring Officer. 

7 Director of HR, OD & CE to share candidate pack with Member Panel to ensure early visibility. 

8 Search organisation places advertisement and progresses wider search activities. 

 POST ADVERT: 

9 Director of HR, OD & CE to contact those to be on the Stakeholder Panel and share with them the 
candidate pack (given role has now been advertised) to ensure early visibility. 

10 Director of HR, OD & CE to set up regular calls with the Leader to keep updated on progress following 
advert. 

11 Search organisation provide weekly updates to Chief Executive and AD HR+OD on search activities. 

12 Director of HR, OD & CE shared updates with Leader (week 1) 

13 Director of HR, OD & CE shared updates with Leader (week 2) 

14 Director of HR, OD & CE shared updates with Leader (week 3) 

15 Director of HR, OD & CE shared updates with Leader (week 4) 

P
age 94



HCC- Chief Executive Recruitment (external using search firm) – 20.06.2022 
 

 
 FOLLOWING CLOSURE OF ADVERT AND BEFORE MEMBER APPOINTMENT PANEL: 

16 Search organisation and Director of HR, OD & CE along with relevant 'expert' as necessary meet to select 
a recommended Long List (no requirement on size of list) from all applications received, subject to final sign 
off by Leader and Member Panel 

17 Director of HR, OD & CE and search organisation meets with the Leader and the agreed Member Panel to 

review the recommended Long List and to confirm the final Long List for inviting to assessments to be 

undertaken by the Director of HR, OD & CE and search organisation. 

18 Long listed candidates to be invited to a meeting with Director of HR, OD & CE and search organisation 
to assess suitability for role. 

19 Members Panel Meeting to review outcome of Long List Interviews with Director HR, OD & CE and search 
organisation in order to agree short listed candidates to invite to Member Panel interview and associated 
activities e.g. psychometrics / stakeholder panel etc. 

 20 Director HR, OD, & CE and search organisation finalise briefing pack and share with both the Stakeholder 
Panel and the Member Panel. 

21 Leader to undertake any pre-interview activities as agreed - Director of HR, OD & CE may join (decision of 
Leader and careful consideration to ensure no suggestion of bias or pre-determining future outcome). 

 MEMBER APPOINTMENT PANEL AND OUTCOME: 

22 Hold Stakeholder Panel and Member Appointment Panel Interviews. 

Stakeholder Panel Chair to report to Member Appointment Panel as agreed (either before formal Member 
Panel Interview or at the end of the day) but before decision making. 

Following both interviews of all candidates, the Member Panel will confirm proposed candidate for 
appointment by Full Council. See Constitution, Part 3, Chapter 1 County Council Standing Orders, Para 
43.11. 
 

P
age 95



HCC- Chief Executive Recruitment (external using search firm) – 20.06.2022 
 

 
23 Leaving Chief Executive (or acting Chief Executive) writes to Cabinet to inform them of the proposed 

candidate and the required period (time not specified in constitution but we apply 24 hours) for any 
objections to be raised. Constitution, Part 3, Chapter 1 County Council Standing Orders, Para 43.5 

 

24 If objections are raised, then the appointer (The Appointment Panel) would need to consider and be 
satisfied that any objection received is not material or not well founded. Constitution, Part 3, Chapter 1 
County Council Standing Orders, Para 43.5 

25 Director of HR, OD & CE draft note of decision for Leader ahead of The Appointment Panel. 

26 Democratic Services produces a report for approval of the proposed appointment at a meeting of Full 
Council (prepared by outgoing Chief Executive, Acting Chief Executive, or Director of HR, OD & CE). 
Constitution, Part 3, Chapter 1 County Council Standing Orders, Para 43.4 

27 Full Council meet to consider and approve the appointment. Constitution, Part 3, Chapter 1 County Council 
Standing Orders, Para 43.4 

28 Leader and/or Director of HR, OD & CE makes formal conditional offer of appointment to individual. 

 

P
age 96



Chief Officer and Deputy Chief Officer (Directors and DMTs) External Recruitment Process using a Search Organisation – 20.06.2022 

2 Chief Officer and Deputy Chief Officer (Directors and DMTs) External Recruitment Process using a 
Search Organisation 

 
Highlighted activity directly relates to a requirement set out in the constitution 

 
 

Step Activity 

 PRE-ADVERT 

1 HR Lead to agree role profile with Chief Executive or Director (as part of candidate pack). 

2 Chief Executive or Director to brief Leader on situation referencing; reason for recruitment, role, grade, salary and 
intended approach. 
Leader to consider who will form the Member Appointment Panel constituted in accordance with Constitution, Part 
3, Chapter 1 County Council Standing Orders, Para 43 and Stakeholder Panels (if needed).  Ensure that relevant bodies 
are included; for example for Public Health appointments, the Faculty of Public Health must be included. 
(Note - the salary for CMT needs to be agreed by EHCC; however, authority for agreeing the salary for DMTs has been 
delegated to the Chief Executive in consultation with the Chairman of EHCC). 

3 Chief Executive and/or Director with HR Lead establishes timeline for recruitment activity and agrees with relevant search 
organisation, this is to include anticipated activities and timeline including role of any necessary ‘Expert’ and Member 
Panel date which would be agreed with Leader. 

4 HR Lead and Chief Executive and/or Director to agree candidate briefing pack and advert with Chief Executive in 
consultation with Leader or Executive Member as appropriate.   

(The briefing pack will include reference to duties/qualifications etc, and will be made available to any applicant on request.  
The briefing pack will also confirm that candidates and Members of the panel are prohibited from contacting each other 
regarding the appointment.)  

 (Key note - doesn’t need to be agreed with the leader, but activity needs to happen in ‘consultation with the leader’ to be 
compliant with Constitution, Part 3, Chapter 1 County Council Standing Orders, Para 43.8) 

P
age 97



Chief Officer and Deputy Chief Officer (Directors and DMTs) External Recruitment Process using a Search Organisation – 20.06.2022 

 

5 HR Lead to confirm with Democratic services the arrangements for proportionate representation of appointment panel 
Constitution, Part 3, Chapter 1 County Council Standing Orders, Para 43.11 

 

HR Lead to liaise with the Chief Executive/or Director and Leader to determine: 
- Members Panel representation - for long listing, shortlisting and interviews. 
- Stakeholder Panel representation (this may be alongside Officer interviews rather than Member Panel - to be decided 
dependent upon role). 

6 Chief Executive and/or HR Lead confirm timeline and associated activities with Monitoring Officer. 

7 HR Lead (via DAMs) to liaise with Members Office to arrange Members Panel as determined by Leader. 

8 HR Lead (via DAMs) to share candidate pack with Member Panel to ensure early visibility. 

9 Search organisation places advertisement and progresses wider search activities. 

 POST ADVERT: 

10 HR Lead to contact those to be on the Stakeholder Panel, and share with them the candidate pack (given role has now 
been advertised) to ensure early visibility. 

11 HR Lead to set up regular calls with the Chief Executive/ Director to keep updated on progress following advert. 

12 Search organisation provide weekly updates to Chief Executive/ Director/ HR Lead on search activities 

13 HR Lead to call/ share update with Chief Executive/ Director (week 1) 

14 HR Lead to call/share update with Chief Executive/ Director (week 2) 

15 HR Lead to call/share update with Chief Executive/ Director (week 3) 

P
age 98



Chief Officer and Deputy Chief Officer (Directors and DMTs) External Recruitment Process using a Search Organisation – 20.06.2022 

 

16 HR Lead to call/share update with Chief Executive/ Director (week 4) 

 FOLLOWING CLOSURE OF ADVERT AND BEFORE MEMBER APPOINTMENT PANEL: 

17 Search organisation, HR Lead, Chief Executive or Director along with relevant 'expert' as necessary, meet to select a 
Long List (no requirement on size of list) from all applications received. 

18 HR Lead (and/or 'expert'), with search organisation to meet with agreed long listed candidates to assess suitability and 
prepare a subsequent report of assessments to be shared with Chief Executive/ Director and Member Panel to determine 
short list. 

19 Chief Executive/ Director, HR Lead and search organisation meet with Member Panel to update them on progress of 
recruitment activity so far and agree the recommended short-list to be invited to the Officer Panel. Those selected will 
then be invited to the Officer Panel interview activities as agreed at the beginning of the process. 

20 Pre-officer/stakeholder interview activities as agreed to be undertaken e.g. psychometrics. 

21 Officer and Stakeholder interviews take place. 

22 Chief Executive/ Director, HR Lead to meet with Member Panel to brief on outcome of Officer Panel interviews and make 
recommendations as to those to be called for formal Member Appointment Panel 

23 Member Panel invite list agreed and invites sent to applicants. 

24 HR Lead, Chief Executive/Director and Search organisation finalise briefing pack and share with the Member Panel. 

 MEMBER APPOINTMENT PANEL AND OUTCOME: 

25 Hold Member Panel Interviews and confirm appointment decision. 

P
age 99



Chief Officer and Deputy Chief Officer (Directors and DMTs) External Recruitment Process using a Search Organisation – 20.06.2022 

 

26 Chief Executive writes to Cabinet to inform them of the proposed candidate and the required period (time not specified in 
constitution but we apply 24 hours) for any objections to be raised. 

27 If objections are raised, then the appointer (Member Panel) would need to consider and be satisfied that any objection 
received is not material or not well founded. 

28 Chief Executive/Director confirms appointment with individual. 

29 Include in next report to EHCC as an update. 

 

P
age 100



3 Chief Officer/ Deputy Chief Officer (Directors/DMTs) - External Advert (no search organisation) 

Highlighted activity directly relates to a requirement set out in the constitution 
 

 

Step Activity 

 PRE-ADVERT 

1 HR Lead to agree role profile with Chief Executive or Director (as part of candidate pack). 

2 Chief Executive or Director to brief Leader on situation referencing; reason for recruitment, role, grade, salary and intended 
approach. 
Leader to consider who will form the Member Appointment Panel and Stakeholder* Panels (*if needed).  Ensure that 
relevant bodies are included; for example for Public Health appointments, the Faculty of Public Health must be included. 
(Note - the salary for CMT needs to be by EHCC; however, authority for agreeing the salary for DMTs has been delegated 
to the Chief Executive in consultation with the Chairman of EHCC). 

3 Chief Executive and/or Director with HR Lead to confirm if there is to be a role for an 'expert' and to confirm the Member 
Panel date (to be agreed with Leader). 

4 HR Lead and Chief Executive and/or Director to agree candidate briefing pack (including duties/qualifications etc) and advert 
with Chief Executive in consultation with Leader or Executive Member as appropriate.  (The briefing pack will include 
reference to; duties/qualifications etc; and confirmation that candidates and Members of the panel are prohibited from 
contacting each other regarding the appointment.)  

 
(Key note - doesn’t need to be agreed with the leader, but activity needs to happen in ‘consultation with the leader’ to be 
compliant with Constitution, Part 3, Chapter 1 County Council Standing Orders, Para 43.8) 
 

5 HR Lead to confirm with Democratic Services the arrangements for proportionate representation of appointment panel 
constituted as per Constitution, Part 3, Chapter 1 County Council Standing Orders, Para 43.11 

 

HR Lead to liaise with the Chief Executive/ or Director and Leader to determine: 
- Members Panel representation - for long listing, shortlisting and interviews. 
- Stakeholder Panel representation (this may be alongside Officer interviews rather than Member Panel - to be decided 
dependent upon role). 

P
age 101



 

6 Chief Executive and/or HR Lead confirm timeline and associated activities with Monitoring Officer. 

7 HR Lead (via DAMs) to liaise with Members Office to arrange Members Panel as determined by Leader. 

8 HR Lead (via DAMs) to share candidate pack with Member Panel to ensure early visibility. 

9 HR Lead, with HCC Recruitment lead places advertisement/ arranges process for issuing of candidate briefing pack. 

 POST ADVERT: 

10 HR Lead to contact those to be on the Stakeholder Panel, and share with them the candidate pack (given role has now 
been advertised) to ensure early visibility. 

11 HR Lead to set up regular calls with the Chief Executive/ Director to keep updated on progress following advert. 

12 HCC Recruitment Lead provides weekly updates to HR Lead/ Chief Executive/ Director, including early visibility of all 
applications received. 

13 HR Lead to call/share update with Chief Executive/ Director (week 1). 

14 HR Lead to call/share update with Chief Executive/ Director (week 2). 

15 HR Lead to call/share update with Chief Executive/ Director (week 3). 

16 HR Lead to call/share update with Chief Executive/ Director (week 4). 

 FOLLOWING CLOSURE OF ADVERT AND BEFORE MEMBER APPOINTMENT PANEL: 

17 HR Lead, Chief Executive or Director along with relevant 'expert' as necessary, meet to select a Long List (no requirement 
on size of list) from all applications received. 

P
age 102



 

18 HR Lead and 'expert', to meet with agreed long listed candidates to assess suitability and prepare a subsequent report of 
assessments to be shared with Chief Executive/ Director and Member Panel to use to determine short list. 

19 Chief Executive/ Director, HR Lead meet with Member Panel to update them on progress of recruitment activity so far and 
agree the recommended short-list to be invited to the Officer Panel. Those selected will then be invited to the Officer Panel 
interview activities as agreed at the beginning of the process. 

20 Pre- officer/ stakeholder interview activities as agreed to be undertaken e.g. psychometrics. 

21 Officer and Stakeholder Interviews take place. 

22 Chief Executive/ Director, HR Lead to meet with Member Panel to brief on outcome of Officer Panel interviews and make 
recommendations as to those to be called for a formal Member Appointment Panel 

23 Member Panel invite list agreed and invites sent to applicants. 

24 HR Lead, Chief Executive/ Director and HCC Recruitment Lead to finalise briefing pack and share with the Member Panel. 

 MEMBER APPOINTMENT PANEL AND OUTCOME: 

25 Hold Member Panel Interviews (including stakeholder panel if required) and confirm appointment decision. 

26 Chief Executive writes to each member of Cabinet to inform them of the proposed candidate and the required period (time 
not specified in constitution but we apply 24 hours) for any objections to be raised. 

27 If objections are raised, then the appointer (Member Panel) would need to consider and be satisfied that any objection 

received is not material or not well founded. 

P
age 103



 

28 Chief Executive/Director confirms appointment with individual. 

29 Include in next report to EHCC as an update (not essential, good housekeeping). 

 

P
age 104



 

Chief Officer/ Deputy Chief Officer (Directors/ DMTs) – Internal Advert – 20.06.2022 

4 Chief Officer/ Deputy Chief Officer (Directors/ DMTs) – Internal Advert 

Highlighted activity directly relates to a requirement set out in the constitution 
 
 

Step Activity 

 PRE ADVERT: 

1 HR Lead to agree role profile with Chief Executive or Director (as part of candidate pack). 

2 Chief Executive or Director to brief Leader on situation referencing; reason for recruitment and why an internal advert 
only approach is being taken, role, grade, salary and intended approach. 

Leader to consider who will form the Member Appointment Panel and Stakeholder* Panels (*if needed).  .  Ensure 
that relevant bodies are included; for example for Public Health appointments, the Faculty of Public Health must be 
included. 
 
(Note - the salary for CMT needs to be agreed by EHCC; however, authority for agreeing the salary for DMTs has been 
delegated to the Chief Executive in consultation with the Chairman of EHCC). 
 

3 Chief Executive and/or Director with HR Lead to confirm if there is to be a role for an 'expert' and to confirm the Member 
Panel date (to be agreed with Leader). 

4 HR Lead and Chief Executive and/or Director to agree candidate briefing pack and advert with Chief Executive in 
consultation with Leader or Executive Member as appropriate. 

(The briefing pack will include reference to; duties/qualifications etc; and confirmation that candidates and Members of the 
panel are prohibited from contacting each other regarding the appointment.) 

 
(Key note - doesn’t need to be agreed with the leader, but activity needs to happen in ‘consultation with the leader’ in order 
to be compliant with Constitution, Part 3, Chapter 1 County Council Standing Orders, Para 43.8) 
 

P
age 105



 

Chief Officer/ Deputy Chief Officer (Directors/ DMTs) – Internal Advert – 20.06.2022 

5 HR Lead to confirm with Democratic Services the arrangements for proportionate representation of appointment panel 
Constitution, Part 3, Chapter 1 County Council Standing Orders, Para 43.11 

 

HR Lead to liaise with the Chief Executive/or Director and Leader to determine: 
- Members Panel representation - for long listing, shortlisting and interviews. 
- Stakeholder Panel representation (this may be alongside Officer interviews rather than Member Panel - to be decided 
dependent upon role). 

P
age 106



 

Chief Officer/ Deputy Chief Officer (Directors/ DMTs) – Internal Advert – 20.06.2022 

 

6 Chief Executive and/or HR Lead confirm timeline and associated activities with Monitoring Officer. 

7 HR Lead to liaise with Members Office to arrange Members Panel as determined by Leader. 

8 HR Lead (via DAMs) to share candidate pack with Member Panel to ensure early visibility. 

9 HR Lead, with HCC Recruitment lead places advertisement / arranges process for issuing of candidate briefing pack. 

 POST ADVERT: 

10 HR Lead to contact those to be on the Stakeholder Panel, and share with them the candidate pack (given role has now 
been advertised) to ensure early visibility. 

11 HR Lead to set up regular calls with the Chief Executive/Director to keep updated on progress following advert. 

12 HCC Recruitment Lead provides weekly updates to HR Lead/Chief Executive/Director, including early visibility of all 
applications received. 

13 HR Lead to call/share update with Chief Executive/Director (week 1). 

14 HR Lead to call/share update with Chief Executive/Director (week 2). 

15 HR Lead to call/share update with Chief Executive/Director (week 3). 

16 HR Lead to call/share update with Chief Executive/Director (week 4). 

 FOLLOWING CLOSURE OF ADVERT AND BEFORE MEMBER APPOINTMENT PANEL: 

17 CX/Director and Officer Panel and HR Lead meet to agree recommended short-list. 

18 CX/Director and HR Lead meet with Member Panel to update on recruitment activity to date and to agree short-list for 
Officer Panel and Stakeholder panel interviews. 

P
age 107



 

Chief Officer/ Deputy Chief Officer (Directors/ DMTs) – Internal Advert – 20.06.2022 

 

19 Pre- officer/stakeholder interview activities as agreed to be undertaken e.g. psychometrics. 

20 Officer Panel and Stakeholder Interviews take place and recommended candidates agreed to be called to Final Member 
Appointment Panel. 

21 Chief Executive/ Director, HR Lead to meet with Member Panel to brief on recommended outcome of Officer Panel and 
Stakeholder Panel interviews in order to enable Member Panel to confirm final shortlist to be invited to Member Panel. 

22 Final short list agreed, and invites sent to invite applicants to Member Panel. 

23 HR Lead, Chief Executive/Director and HCC Recruitment Lead to finalise briefing pack and share with the Member Panel. 

 MEMBER APPOINTMENT PANEL AND OUTCOME: 

24 Hold Member Panel Interviews (including stakeholder panel if required) and confirm appointment decision. 

25 Chief Executive writes to Cabinet to inform them of the proposed candidate and the required period (time not specified in 
constitution but we apply 24 hours) for any objections to be raised. 

26 If objections are raised, then the appointer (Member Panel) would need to consider and be satisfied that any objection 

received is not material or not well founded. 

27 Chief Executive/Director confirms appointment with individual. 

28 Include in next report to EHCC as an update (not essential, good housekeeping). 

 

P
age 108



 

Chief Officers and Deputy Chief Officer (Directors and DMTs) –interim appointment to permanent appointment – 20.06.2022 

5 Chief Officers and Deputy Chief Officer (Directors and DMTs) –

interim appointment to permanent appointment via EHCC report and 

Member Appointment Panel 
 
Highlighted activity directly relates to a requirement set out in the constitution 

 
This process applies where a CMT/DMT vacancy has arisen (leaver) or been created 
(as a new and/or additional post), where interim arrangements have been in place for a 
minimum of 12 months and where it is now considered appropriate to seek to make 
permanent via a Member Appointment Panel. 

Note : In order for this process to be progressed/concluded, there is the need for an 
update regarding proposed appointment to go to EHCC and so early consideration of 
the EHCC meetings is needed as these take place just 3 times each ear – March, June 
or July and November. 

Deputy : Where a Deputy is required from the substantive DMT cohort the EHCC Snr 
Management Update paper of 13 March 2019 stated: ‘Directors should have the ability 
to nominate an existing Assistant Director as a formal deputy to provide support and 
additional capacity on transformation and departmental leadership. Such arrangements 
will only apply to established and ‘senior’ Assistant Directors and should have little if any 
financial implications, all of which will be borne within departments’ 

 
 
 

Step Activity 

1 HR Lead to agree role profile with Chief Executive or Director. 

2 Chief Executive or Director to brief Leader on situation referencing; reason for 
why the conversion of an interim appointment to a permanent position 
is appropriate including duties/qualifications for role, grade, salary and 
intended approach. 

(Key note - doesn’t need to be agreed with the leader, but activity needs to 
happen in line with Constitution, Part 3, Chapter 1 County Council Standing 
Orders, Para 43.8) 

 
Note - the salary for CMT needs to be approved by EHCC; however, authority 
for agreeing the salary for DMTs has been delegated to the Chief Executive in 
consultation with the Chairman of EHCC. 

3 Chief Executive or Director, HR Lead and Leader to brief Opposition Leader 
and Chairman of EHCC – including agreeing the make-up of the ‘paper 
based’ member panel (with proportionate representation of appointment panel 
Constitution, Part 3, Chapter 1 County Council Standing Orders, Para 43.11). 

Page 109



 

Chief Officers and Deputy Chief Officer (Directors and DMTs) –interim appointment to permanent appointment – 20.06.2022 

4 Chief Executive and/or HR Lead confirm timeline and associated activities 
with Monitoring Officer. 

5 Update to be provided to EHCC – via a Senior Management Update Report, 
which recommends a Member Appointment Panel is held to consider the 
conversion of an Interim Chief/Deputy Chief Officer to a Permanent 
Chief/Deputy Chief Officer post. This paper will also reference that the salary 
for the role will be agreed by the Chief Executive in consultation with the 
Chairman of EHCC as per the Pay, Policy and Legislation Update report to 
EHCC of 12 November 2020. (If a Chief Officer post (CMT), salary to be 
agreed by EHCC). 

Typical paras used in paper: The recommendation is now to confirm these 
arrangements on a substantive basis and in doing so, ensure that capacity 
and capability at the required level is retained, ensuring essential stability at a 
time of significant challenge. It is therefore proposed that a Member 
Appointment Panel be convened to consider confirmation of these 
arrangements. 

This is a process which meets the requirements of Standing Orders and has 
been adopted for a number of years whereby Panels have approved the 
appointment of internal candidates to key senior management roles. This 
enables the County Council to appoint senior managers who are developing 
their career and provides opportunities to create and build capacity in the 
organisation. 

As agreed by EHCC, delegated authority has been given to the Chief 
Executive in consultation with the Chairman of the EHCC Committee to set 
salary rates for each of the post holders referred to in this report which are 
reflective of the established rates for the posts. 

6 If EHCC agree to a Member Panel being convened, HR Lead to confirm with 
Democratic Services the panel arrangements (as per 3. above) 

7 HR Lead and Director or Chief Executive meet with Member Panel to brief 
and provide context and supporting information including an Appointment 
Panel Report. 

 MEMBER APPOINTMENT PANEL AND OUTCOME: 

8 Hold ‘paper based’ Member Panel and confirm appointment decision. 

9 Chief Executive writes to Cabinet to inform them of the proposed candidate 
and the required period (time not specified in constitution but we apply 24 
hours) for any objections to be raised. 

Page 110



 

Chief Officers and Deputy Chief Officer (Directors and DMTs) –interim appointment to permanent appointment – 20.06.2022 

10 If objections are raised, then the appointer (Member Panel) would need to 

consider and be satisfied that any objection received is not material or not well 

founded. 

11 Chief Executive/Director confirms appointment with individual. 

12 HR Lead arranges for formal IBC appointment processes to be concluded. 

13 HR Lead Includes outcome in next report to EHCC as an update. 

 

Page 111



This page is intentionally left blank



Chief Officer and Deputy Chief Officer (CMT/DMTs) – confirming an acting up/interim appointment from existing member of staff to 

a member of DMT via EHCC report – 20.06.2022 

 

6 Chief Officer and Deputy Chief Officer (CMT/DMTs) – confirming 

an acting up/interim appointment from existing member of staff to a 

member of DMT via EHCC report (noting any subsequent permanent 

appointment to be made via a Member Appointment Panel as per 

Process 5). 

 
 
Highlighted activity directly relates to a requirement set out in the constitution. 

This process applies where a CMT/DMT vacancy has arisen (leaver) or been created 

(as a new and/or additional post) and there is a strong rationale to ‘act’ a member of the 

current substantive leadership team into this role, the term being for a minimum of 12 

months. 

Within this process, there is the need to update EHCC and seek endorsement regarding 

proposed appointments and so early consideration of the EHCC meetings is needed. 

EHCC meet 3 times each year – March, June or July and November. 

Deputy Appointments: Where a Deputy is required from the substantive DMT cohort the 

EHCC Snr Management Update paper of 13 March 2019 stated: ‘Directors should have 

the ability to nominate an existing Assistant Director as a formal deputy to provide 

support and additional capacity on transformation and departmental leadership. Such 

arrangements will only apply to established and ‘senior’ Assistant Directors and should 

have little if any financial implications, all of which will be borne within departments’ 

The constitution doesn’t differentiate between temporary or permanent appointments, it 

references ‘appointment’. The approach taken has been that this has been interpreted 

to mean permanent appointments, however the Monitoring Officer has advised that 

endorsement of acting up/interim appointments (from internal or external sources) are 

sought from EHCC, preferably in advance. 

Note – External Contractors: The process for converting acting up/interim 

appointments into permanent appointments relates only to ‘employees’ and does not 

apply to Contractors. If contractors are placed in Chief Officer/Deputy Chief Officer 

roles on an interim basis, then they would need to go through one of the processes that 

seeks external candidates. 
 
 
 

Step Activity 

1 Chief Executive and Director to confirm the need for interim/acting up 

arrangements; and in doing so agree role profile. 

Page 113



Chief Officer and Deputy Chief Officer (CMT/DMTs) – confirming an acting up/interim appointment from existing member of staff to 

a member of DMT via EHCC report – 20.06.2022 

 

2 Inform EHCC of the need to put in place an acting up / interim arrangement. 

This will be done via the normal Senior Management update report or by a 

specific report where significant changes are required. 

Notify EHCC that the expected duration will be for a minimum of 12 months. 

This will normally be done in advance of any acting up/interim arrangements, 

however it can be retrospective of the appointment if the EHCC timeline of 

meetings doesn’t allow (and subject to EHCC having endorsed this approach 

– to be requested of EHCC at the June 2022 meeting via a Snr Management 

Update report). 

3 Confirm interim arrangements with employee. 

4 Provide updates for noting to EHCC as required. 

5 Refer to process 5 for the steps needed to progress the interim arrangement 

to a permanent appointment. 

 
 
 
 
 

Additional notes: 

In the Snr Management Update paper for June EHCC, put in a para that asks for EHCC 

to endorse the Chief Executive’s ability to make interim/temporary Chief Officer / Deputy 

Chief Officer appointments should the need arise (to be sourced from either current 

employees or through outside recruitment activity) and which would be subject to a 

Member Appointment Panel should there be a need for the role to become permanent. 

Page 114



EHCC pay and Policy Paper – July 2022 
 
Appendix 7 – Summary of outstanding government consultations  
 
 
Disability Workforce Reporting 

1. The government consulted between December 2021 and April 2022.  This 
consultation sought evidence of current practice by employers and views on the 
potential for mandatory disability workforce reporting. The Council already 
voluntarily reports disability workforce data though the Annual Workforce Report.  
 

Making Flexible Working the Default 

2. The government consulted between September and December 2021 seeking 
views on several proposed changes to regulations that provide the statutory right 
to request flexible working. The consultation is asked questions on the following:  

  The impact of allowing all UK employees to request a flexible working 
arrangement from day one with their employer  

  Whether the list of reasons an employer can refuse a request are still valid  
  Requiring an employer to demonstrate that they have considered alternatives 

to the request, rather than a simple refusal 
  The frequency with which employees can request to work flexibly (currently 

limited to once in a 12-month period) and how fast employers need to respond 
to such a request  

3. The Council recently introduced an Open Workplace Policy that sets out how 
managers and employees can reap the benefits of working flexibly in roles where 
this can be accommodated. The Open Workplace policy is in addition to the 
Council’s Right to Request Flexible Working policy, which is a statutory 
requirement. Several of the proposals in the consultation would necessitate a 
change to the Councils’ Right to Request Flexible Working policy if legislation is 
amended. 

 
Ethnicity Pay Gap Reporting 

4. The government consulted between October 2018 and January 2019, seeking 
views on what ethnicity pay information should be reported to allow meaningful 
action in this area.  

5. The government is yet to formally respond to this consultation, however the 
government responded in March 2022 to the Commission on Race and Ethnic 
Disparities. This response recognised that reporting on ethnicity will need to be 
very different to gender reporting, which uses just 2 categories and would 

Page 115



therefore be more complex for organisations to implement. The government are 
expecting to publish guidance to employers on voluntary ethnicity pay gap 
reporting in Summer 2022. 

 
Measures taken to address one-sided flexibility 

6. The government consulted between July 2019 and October 2019 in relation to 
measures to address “one-sided flexibility”.  This consultation sought views on 
introducing new rights for workers to be given reasonable notice of their working 
hours and to be compensated where their shifts are cancelled or curtailed without 
reasonable notice.  

Exit Payment Reform  

7. There are several potential reforms in this area, in addition to the statutory Special 
Severance Payment guidance issued in May 2022, as described in the main body 
of this report.  

8. The consultation on ‘public sector exit payment recovery regulations’ opened in 
December 2015 and closed in January 2016. Government are yet to respond. This 
consultation sought views on the requirement to repay exit payments on a sliding 
scale if; 

  an employee left with an exit package, and  

  they had a salary of £80k or more, and 

  they re-entered a public sector employment within 12 months of leaving 

9. The consultation on ‘reforming local government exit pay’ concluded in November 
2020 and involved proposals that would  

  restrict the number of weeks’ pay that could be paid to individuals when they 
exit a local government employer  

  place a cap on the value of a weeks’ salary that could be used in making exit 
payments  

  place a cap on the total value of exit payments that could be made – to £95k.  

10. Proposals in this consultation could necessitate changes to the Enhanced 
Voluntary Redundancy scheme currently in use in the Council, the extension of 
which was approved by EHCC in March 2022. 

11. In November 2020, new regulations were introduced that capped the value of exit 
payments to £95k, as proposed in the consultation described in paragraph 9. 
However, in February 2021 these regulations were revoked. This followed an 
extensive review that the cap may have had unintended consequences.  

Page 116



12. While there is no formal consultation open on the £95k cap, the consultation 
described in paragraph 9 remains open. In addition, local authorities were required 
to report exit payment data from 2016 onwards and are now required to report this 
as part of the annual accounts. It is understood that further announcements on 
exit payment reform are to be expected, however there are no known timescales.  

 

Page 117



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	The press and public are welcome to attend the public sessions of the meeting. If you have any particular requirements, for example if you require wheelchair access, please contact members.services@hants.gov.uk for assistance.

	3 Minutes of previous meeting
	6 Annual Workforce Report 2021 - 2022
	HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
	REQUIRED CORPORATE AND LEGAL INFORMATION:
	Links to the Strategic Plan
	Other Significant Links
	EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT:
	1.	Equality Duty
	The County Council has a duty under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 (‘the Act’) to have due regard in the exercise of its functions to the need to:
	-	Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other conduct prohibited by or under the Act with regard to the protected characteristics as set out in section 4 of the Act (age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation);
	-	Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation) and those who do not share it;
	-	Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (see above) and persons who do not share it.
	Due regard in this context involves having due regard in particular to:
	-	The need to remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic;
	-	Take steps to meet the needs of persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share it;
	-	Encourage persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic to participate in public life or in any other activity in which participation by such persons is disproportionally low.

	2.	Equalities Impact Assessment:
	Equality objectives are not considered to be adversely affected by proposals in this report.  The intent of this report is to enhance inclusion, diversity and equality at the County Council by publishing employee data relating to protected characteristics to help inform strategies and target initiatives to improve the workplace.


	Annex One - Annual Workforce Report - 2021-2022
	Workforce Report Front Cover
	Contents
	Executive 
summary
	Our organisation
	Our departments 
‘at a glance’ 
	Our people
	Employee 
lifecycle
	Attract
	Resource
	Onboard
	Develop
	Reward and recognise
	Progress 
and perform
	Retain 
and exit
	Conclusions
	Next steps
	Appendices
	Appendix one
	Appendix two
	Appendix three
	Appendix four
	Appendix five
	Workforce Report Back Cover


	7 Connect2Hampshire - Update On Hampshire's Temporary Staffing Agency
	HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
	Report
	Purpose of this Report
	1.	The purpose of this report is to provide the Employment in Hampshire County Council Committee (EHCC) with an update on the County Councils joint venture agency, Hampshire & Kent Commercial Services LLP (trading as Connect2Hampshire).

	Recommendations
	2.	The EHCC is asked to note the update for Connect2Hampshire in relation to 2021/22, including its performance during this period in relation to the provision of temporary agency workers to the County Council.

	Executive Summary
	3.	Following Connect2Hampshire (C2H) completing its third year of trading, this report provides EHCC with an update on the agency’s performance during 2021/22, including the anticipated profit share for the County Council in respect of the financial year ended 31st March 2022.

	Background and context
	4.	Connect2Hampshire (C2H) is the trading name of the County Councils joint venture agency (Hampshire & Kent Commercial Services LLP), which launched in April 2019. 2021/22 has seen the completion of the agencies third year of operation, during which time the LLP has continued to support the County Council through the challenges of the COVID-19 pandemic.
	5.	The LLP itself is underpinned by a Members Agreement between Hampshire County Council and Kent Commercial Services Ltd, who each own 50% of the LLP. In addition, a Joint Accountability Statement sets out the basis on which the LLP will provide agency managed services into the County Council.
	Governance and Assurance
	6.	The leadership and management of C2H is governed through the LLP Board which meets quarterly, and the Executive Board which meets monthly to review operational performance. The Executive Board focuses on a range of matters including:
		Operational and HR performance highlights - including delivery against any initiatives implemented, the LLPs response to any service issues, as well as team performance measures and metrics;
		The financial health of the LLP - helping to track the in-year financial performance against the budget set for different areas of supply, as well as the overall financial health and commercial sustainability of the LLP;
		Performance against C2H’s 3-year rolling business plan and agreement of any changes to priorities within this – the business plan sets out the history of the joint venture and the business model adopted, the governance arrangements, C2H’s vision and values, and any strategic assumptions. It is reviewed each year to agree the future strategy and business plan objectives, as well as to reflect the current market and potential opportunities to further support the County Council, and the financial plan for that period.
		Other assurance themes – including a regular review of the LLPs risk register, and the outcome of any internal audits completed (by Kent County Council on behalf of the LLP) and any proposed management actions. Copies of these internal audit reports are also shared with the County Council’s internal audit team for assurance purposes.
	7.	As part of this monthly Executive Board meeting, the Board Member and Senior Board Officer representing HCC also have the opportunity to note any successes, or to raise any particular areas of concern, with a view to the Board being able to consider and agree any interventions to address these.
	8.	Both boards are considered to be operating effectively, and good relationships have developed between the partner representatives. As such, the County Council remains in a strong position to influence the direction of travel for the LLP (ensuring this aligns with the original objectives for investing in the creation of the agency – i.e., quality and continuity of service provision, over financial profit), and to develop a robust culture of continuous improvement in terms of the agency services provided into the County Council.

	Changes in LLP Board and Executive Board Membership
	9.	In July 2021, following Carolyn Williamson’s appointment as Chief Executive of the County Council, the position of Board Member of the LLP (representing the County Council’s interests) passed to Jac Broughton, Director of HR, OD, Communications and Engagement.
	10.	There have been no further changes to the Board Member representing the Commercial Services Group interests; this remains Matt Johnson, who took up the position of Chief Executive for Commercial Services in mid-March 2021.
	11.	In addition, the existing Senior Board Officers who sit on the LLPs Executive Board remain in place (representing both Commercial Services Group and the County Council).

	Performance update
	12.	During 2021/22 the County Council spent approximately £29.8m through C2H on agency provision, demonstrating the scale of services received. This represents an increase compared with previous years (£27.0m in 2019/20 and £27.1m in 2020/21), and this is partly due to the increased need for additional agency workers to support the County Council’s response to the COVID-19 pandemic.
	13.	The most significant areas of spend by the County Council continue to include residential and nursing care agency provision (including nurses), Qualified Social Workers (QSW) and IT contractors.
	14.	This represents a significant level of supply from C2H into the County Council in these areas, but unsurprisingly they are also some of the services with the most significant (national) workforce challenges, impacting both our ability to recruit to our permanent workforce, as well as C2H’s ability to source sufficient supply to fully meet our current levels of demand for agency workers.
	15.	The Joint Accountability Statement provides a basis on which to assess the high-level performance of C2H, through a set of agreed performance measures. These cover a range of quantitative and qualitative themes, including ability to fil roles, hiring manager satisfaction and candidate quality, completion of relevant vetting and other checks prior to commencement (e.g., Right to Work, DBS checks and references), and availability of C2H’s systems to the County Council, their supply chain, and candidates.
	16.	Broadly speaking C2H are meeting all of the performance targets. The overall volume of roles which have been fulfilled (and the associated expenditure) provides a strong indication of C2H’s ability to meet the vast majority of the County Council’s current levels of demand, albeit it is acknowledged there are more challenging or harder to fill roles within this position. A good example of how C2H have risen to the challenge set them has been their successful contribution to the recruitment of the County Council’s ‘Test and Trace’ workforce (aka the Covid Warriors), circa 80 staff, most of which were sourced and provided by C2H.
	17.	One of the key priorities for C2H has been to build its ‘directly sourced’ candidate workforce – this essentially means the LLP providing their own candidates to the County Council for available roles, rather than relying on 3rd party agencies filling these (through the framework), contributing toward service improvement, quality, and resilience. Good progress has continued to be made in this space as noted in table 1 below, in particular within directly sourced care roles, increasing from 14% as at Q4 last year, to 28% as at the end of Q4 this year (33% at Q3).
	18.	Some areas have seen marginal reductions in recent months, but not to a level which would indicate cause for concern. For example, other professionals has still performed very well (with directly sourced candidates at 74%, slightly lower than last year), and Care which experienced a slight reduction between Q3 of 2021/22 (at 33%) and the end of the year (28%).
	Challenges experienced and Connect2Hampshire’s response
	19.	EHCC will be aware of the ‘national’ workforce recruitment and retention challenges experienced this year, and how the impact of the pandemic has intensified these, in particular within Social Care – residential and nursing care and qualified social work – but not exclusively. This has also translated in terms of C2H’s ability to meet our resulting levels of demand for agency workers in some of these harder to fill roles, to complement our permanent recruitment.
	20.	It is however acknowledged that this is broader than just the LLP’s ability to respond. The County Council are working closely with C2H to collectively understand the wider landscape and evidence the numerous factors which drive up our demand (and the extent to which we rely on) our agency workforce to address any resource shortages. The intention will be to develop a more strategic approach to our joint workforce planning, and how we respond to such challenges.
	Initiatives supported
	21.	During the year C2H have supported the County Council with several new initiatives; one of the main benefits of working in partnership and being a 50% owner of the LLP is that we can quickly influence and implement changes in how the agency supports our temporary workforce requirements.  Examples include:
		the support for the County Councils Call2Care recruitment initiative, as well as the ability to begin to test a new offer of permanent recruitment services to the independent care sector as Connect2Care. Whilst the Connect2Care initiative is showing some promising signs of success, it is too early to report on the performance of the pilot and the LLPs longer-term ability to support this. A further update will be provided in next year’s report;
		expanding the existing managed service provider offer to support recruitment of Children’s Qualified Social Worker’s though delivery of a new model of ‘social work team’ supply.
	Financial Performance

	Final Profit share for 2020/21
	22.	As noted to EHCC in July 2021, the LLP were estimating a net profit position for 2020/21 of approximately £352,000 (pre any final accounting adjustments).
	23.	The final position was unchanged, and the accounts were signed off by the appointed External Auditors with an unqualified opinion. As a result, the County Council received a dividend (profit share) payment last year in relation to 2020/21 of around £176,000 (i.e., 50% of the overall net profit).

	Estimated profit share for 2021/22
	24.	It is too soon to confirm the final year-end net profit position for 2021/22; this will be declared once the accounts have been audited. However, at the time of writing this report, the estimated net profit is expected to be in the region of £500,000, an increase of approximately 42% on the final position for the previous year.
	25.	This is a strong achievement for the LLP, solidifying financial confidence in the sustainability of the model. It should be noted however, that 2021/22 includes additional revenue for roles which are unlikely to be repeated to the same extent in future years – for example, the supply of Test and Trace roles.
	26.	This position is also prior to any accounting adjustments or provisions that may need to be made as part of the final accounts prepared, so is subject to change. This could see the County Councils (50%) profit share to be in the region of up to £250,000 for 2021/22, subject to approval by the LLP Board.
	27.	It is proposed that any dividend received will be allocated again to departments cost of change reserves, in line with the proportion of the overall revenue expenditure they incurred for the year.
	Repayment of initial loans made by partners
	28.	When the LLP was initially set up, each partner contributed an initial loan of £230,000 (a total of £460,000). This was intended to support the initial cash flow requirements for mobilising the creation of the agency, as well as any pre-trading expenditure incurred before C2H was formally launched In April 2019.
	29.	Following a review by the LLP Board the loan has now been repaid in full to both partners, including all accrued interest due.
	LLP Business Plan
	30.	As noted earlier in the report, C2H’s operating model is underpinned by a 3-year business plan (2020-2023), which is reviewed each year.
	31.	The business plan includes further details of the Joint Venture model adopted for the LLP and the basis on which it operates – including the shareholding agreement. It also provides details of the Board Members and their responsibilities, as well as those of the Operational Delivery team, led by the Connect2Hampshire Business Manager.
	32.	It sets out C2H’s aspirational vision (as agreed with the Executive Board in 2020), as well as its core values:
	33.	The Business Plan is refreshed each year to agree any changes to the future strategy and business plan objectives, taking in to account the workforce market at that time, and potential (new) opportunities to further support the County Council, along with (indicative) potential timescales.
	34.	Generally speaking, the objectives of the Business Plan have been met. However, throughout the course of the pandemic the focus of the Executive Board has very much been in the space of maintaining existing services in response to the pandemic and beginning to build toward recovery. As such the Executive Board have consciously agreed that many of the potential areas of service growth which could be explored would be deferred indefinitely, aligning with the priorities for the County Council.
	35.	The business plan will be reviewed again by the Executive Board in the coming months.

	Key priorities for 2022/23
	36.	As C2H moves toward 2022/23, the LLP will continue to focus on several key priorities to support the County Councils requirements as we recover from the impacts of the pandemic.
	37.	This includes continuing to embed a culture of continuous improvement within the C2H team and further developing and maturing the service provided to the County Council, as well as continuing to identify and expand on new opportunities and strategic initiatives which will support the sourcing of candidates for harder to fill roles.

	Climate Change
	38.	Hampshire County Council utilises two decision-making tools to assess the carbon emissions and resilience impacts of its projects and decisions. These tools provide a clear, robust, and transparent way of assessing how projects, policies and initiatives contribute towards the County Council’s climate change targets of being carbon neutral and resilient to the impacts of a 2℃ temperature rise by 2050. This process ensures that climate change considerations are built into everything the Authority does.
	39.	The decision for this report is essentially to note the performance of Connect2Hampshire during the financial year 2020/21. It does not recommend any changes, and as such does not have any climate change considerations.

	Conclusions
	40.	Despite the continued challenges faced by Connect2Hampshire during 2021/22, C2H has effectively supported the County Council to meet our temporary workforce requirements throughout the year.
	41.	The LLP is expected to declare a net profit in the region of £500,000 in relation to the 2021/22 financial year. This could see the County Councils (50%) profit share to be in the region of up to £250,000.


	REQUIRED CORPORATE AND LEGAL INFORMATION:
	Links to the Strategic Plan
	Other Significant Links
	EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT:
	1.	Equality Duty
	The County Council has a duty under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 (‘the Act’) to have due regard in the exercise of its functions to the need to:
	-	Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other conduct prohibited by or under the Act with regard to the protected characteristics as set out in section 4 of the Act (age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation);
	-	Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation) and those who do not share it;
	-	Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (see above) and persons who do not share it.
	Due regard in this context involves having due regard in particular to:
	-	The need to remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic;
	-	Take steps to meet the needs of persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share it;
	-	Encourage persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic to participate in public life or in any other activity in which participation by such persons is disproportionally low.

	2.	Equalities Impact Assessment:
	There are no changes proposed in this report. As such a further equalities impact assessment has not been undertaken.



	8 Pay, Policy And Legislation Update
	HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
	Purpose of this Report
	1.	The purpose of this report is to provide an update to EHCC on the 2021 and 2022 National Pay Award. This paper also highlights the forthcoming challenges leading up to 2024.
	2.	This paper also provides an update on newly issued Special Severance Payments statutory guidance, together with recommendations in respect of associated decision making, and potential employment related legislative changes.
	3.	This paper provides information on the processes  relating to the appointment of Chief Officers and Deputy Chief Officers.
	4.	By exception, this paper includes an update on the Deputy Chief Executive arrangements.
	Recommendation(s)
	5.	That EHCC note that the National Pay Award for 2021 has been implemented.
	6.	That EHCC note the current status of negotiations on the National Pay Award for 2022 (which applies from 1 April 2022) and agree to apply the national pay award to EHCC Grades A-G and payments for standby and sleeping in duties, once national negotiations have concluded, as contractually obliged to do so.
	7.	As in previous years, that EHCC agree to officers applying the same national pay award to EHCC Grades H and above, on the presumption that it is no more than 4.5% over 2 years in line with budget arrangements.  If the settlement is higher than this, a decision will be brought back to EHCC.
	8.	That EHCC note the issues that will need to be addressed for 2024.
	9.	That EHCC notes the new statutory guidance on Special Severance Payments.
	10.	That EHCC confirms the Chief Executive has authority to approve Special Severance Payments to non-Chief Officers or Deputy Chief Officers leaving the Council, provided that any Special Severance Payments of £20,000 and above but below £100,000, shall be approved in consultation with the Chairman of EHCC; and
	11.	That EHCC recommends to the County Council that it remains the appropriate Committee to agree Chief Officer remuneration, for Chief Officers above Grade K, including individual salary offers in respect of any new Chief Officer appointments or severance packages for Chief Officers leaving the County Council and any Special Severance Payments to any Officer of £100,000 or more, in accordance with the Pay Statement.
	12.	That EHCC notes the other updates on government consultations and potential employment legislation changes set out in this paper.
	13.	That EHCC notes the processes for the appointment of Chief Officers and Deputy Chief Officers.
	14.	That EHCC note the arrangements proposed in relation to the appointment of a Deputy Chief Executive.
	Executive Summary

	15.	The Trade Unions have lodged their pay claim for 2022/23. This includes an increase of either £2,000 or the current rate of RPI (whichever is greater) plus a review of other terms and conditions.
	16.	The Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC) published statutory guidance on 12 May 2022, setting out restrictions on paying ‘Special Severance Payments’ in Local Authorities. The effects of this together with recommendations for implementing it are set out in the paper.
	Contextual information
	National Pay Claim

	17.	The Trade Unions have lodged their pay claim for 2022/23. This includes a claim for an increase in base salary (the pay award element) and a review of other terms and conditions as follows;
		An increase of either £2,000, or the current rate of RPI (whichever is greater)
		A Covid-19 recognition payment
		A national minimum agreement on homeworking policies for all councils and the introduction of a home working allowance
		An urgent review of all mileage rates currently applying
		A review and update of the National Joint Council terms for family leave and pay
		A review of term time only contracts and consideration of retainers
		Reduction in the working week (without loss of pay) from 37 to 35 hours
		One additional day of annual leave

	18.	The terms and conditions of staff are governed by a collective agreement, called the Employment in Hampshire County Council agreement (‘EHCC agreement’). This agreement was signed by recognised unions and the Council and has been in effect since 1 April 2007.
	19.	The EHCC agreement requires the application of the nationally agreed pay award to EHCC Grades A-G inclusive. Officers will apply the finally negotiated pay award element to this group of staff.
	20.	The pay award for Grades H and above is subject to agreement by the EHCC committee and consultation with Hampshire recognised Trade Unions. As in previous years, it is recommended that EHCC agree to officers applying the same national pay award to EHCC Grades H and above, on the presumption that it is no more than 4.5% over two years, in line with budget arrangements.  If the settlement is higher than this, a decision will be brought back to EHCC
	21.	All other terms and conditions that are the subject of the Unions’ pay claim are set either by the EHCC agreement, by contracts of employment, or by local policies. Officers will need to review any nationally agreed changes to determine what impact they have, if any, for the Council’s terms and conditions or policies. Any changes to the EHCC agreement would require approval from EHCC and would be subject to negotiation with recognised Trade Unions.
	22.	An update will be provided to EHCC when further details of the negotiations are known.
	Pay Challenge to 2024

	23.	In light of the rising rate of inflation which will impact the cost of living in 2022/23 and beyond as well as the forecast increases to the National Living Wage over the next 2 years, as expected, Trade Unions have submitted a high pay claim for 2022/23. The pay claim is in the context of ongoing significant savings targets; and the challenging employment market which brings increased recruitment and retention complexities and challenges.
	24.	As such an increased budget provision of 2.5% has been set aside for the 2022/23 pay award with the allowance returning to 2% from 2023/24. These amounts will be held in corporate contingencies until any pay awards are agreed.
	25.	A more detailed update will be brought to a future EHCC meeting, however EHCC are asked to note the challenges in this area.
	Statutory Guidance on Special Severance Payments
	26.	As reported to EHCC in July 2021, the government launched a consultation on Special Severance Payments and the Statutory Guidance has now been published. This guidance has been made under the Local Government Act 1999, and applies to all Best Value Authorities, which includes Hampshire County Council.  The 1999 Act places a duty on Best Value Authorities to “make arrangements to secure continuous improvements in the way in which its functions are exercised having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness”.  The County Council is required to “have regard to” the new guidance on Special Severance Payments in order to meet its best value obligations.
	27.	The guidance can be found here: Statutory guidance on the making and disclosure of Special Severance Payments by local authorities in England - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk) and sets out:
	28.	The guidance largely defines “Special Severance Payments” as payments made to a departing employee which are not statutory or contractual entitlements. Therefore, any “ex-gratia” payment reached under a settlement agreement between the employer and employee (e.g., to avoid legal proceedings), would be a Special Severance Payment. However, statutory and contractual redundancy payments (including pension strain charges) are not Special Severance Payments.
	29.	The guidance sets out the government’s expectations about approvals for Special Severance Payments, and suggests that payments of £100,000 and above be approved by a vote of full council; payments of £20,000 and above, but below £100,000, be personally approved and signed off by the Head of Paid Service, with a clear record of the Leader’s approval (NB whilst the guidance suggests that the “approval” of the Leader is required, legally, decisions in respect of terms and conditions are non-executive functions and so any “approval” would need to be via a non-executive process); and payments below £20,000 must be approved according to the local authority’s scheme of delegation.  The guidance also suggests that where a payment is being made to the Head of Paid Service, then it should be approved by a panel including at least two independent persons.
	30.	Previous statutory guidance in respect of Pay Policy Statements contains similar requirements for full Council approval of salaries on appointment over £100,000 and severance payments over £100,000.  The County Council has already delegated approval of such payments to the EHCC Committee in February 2014 and has since confirmed this annually when approving the Pay Policy Statement.  It is recommended that for practical business reasons, the County Council should agree that this also includes Special Severance Payments of £100,000 and above.
	31.	Where it is proposed to pay any Special Severance Payment to the Head of Paid Service, then it is recommended that before approving such payment, EHCC should seek the views of at least two Independent Persons appointed in accordance with the Localism Act 2011 and take these into account prior to making any decision.
	32.	Under the constitution, the Chief Executive already has authority to agree severance payments and so can continue to approve Special Severance Payments below £100,000. However, in light of the new statutory guidance, it is recommended that before approval is given to payments above £20,000 and below £100,000, the Chief Executive will consult with the Chair of EHCC.
	33.	The Council already has a robust process to ensure that exit payments represent value for money. Officers have reviewed this process in light of the new guidance to ensure that it remains compliant and also to ensure that the recommended elements in respect of economy, efficiency and effectiveness are properly considered in all determinations regarding severance payments.
	34.	The Council also has robust processes in place to ensure it complies with its transparency obligations in respect of publishing information and data.  Again, these processes have been reviewed and will be updated to ensure the disclosure and reporting requirements in the new guidance are met.
	35.	Officers understand that this guidance is unconnected to ongoing discussions about exit reforms, such as the intention to limit exit payments to £95k. The latest update on this change was provided to EHCC in March 2021. The government are expected to come forward with proposals in this area, however there are no known timescales.
	Appointment of Chief Officers and Deputy Chief Officers

	36.	Under the constitution, Members have responsibility for the appointment of Chief Officers and Deputy Chief Officers, essentially this covers the appointment of CMT Members and Departmental Management Teams.
	37.	The process (the steps we undertake to fill a position) for engaging with Members, and ultimately for the appointment of a Chief or Deputy Chief Officers, varies slightly depending on the attraction strategy being deployed and for the purposes of transparency and clarity we have now recorded a separate process for each of the main attraction strategies as follows (with processes attached in Appendices 1-6):
		Appendix 1 - Chief Executive recruitment – via a search agency
		Appendix 2 - Chief Officer/Deputy Chief Officer – via a search agency
		Appendix 3 - Chief Officer/Deputy Chief Officer – via an external advert (no search agency)
		Appendix 4 - Chief Officer/Deputy Chief Officer – via an internal advert
		Appendix 5 - Chief Officer/Deputy Chief Officer – Interim appointment to Permanent (no advert)
		Appendix 6 - Chief Officer/Deputy Chief Officer – via an interim/acting up arrangement to Chief Officer/Deputy Chief Officer

	38.	The Monitoring Officer has confirmed that each process is fully compliant with the Constitution
	39.	Whilst any previous recruitment activity for Chief Officers and Deputy Chief Officers has been compliant with the Constitution, we have had some feedback about the level of engagement and influence that Members feel they have in these processes and therefore we have sought to ensure that in each process we include the Leader and the Member Panel (as appointed by the Leader) at an earlier point, and seek to thereon keep them informed as the process is progressed  It is our intention that this will support a greater understanding of the applicant pool and enable more meaningful Member input to the selection process.
	40.	The updated processes have been agreed with Carolyn as Chief Executive, the Leader, Deputy Leader, the Leader of the Opposition and the Chairman of EHCC.  As already mentioned, all processes have also been agreed with the Monitoring Officer.
	41.	EHCC are asked to note the changes in the relevant recruitment processes.
	Deputy Chief Executive Arrangements

	42.	Cabinet at its meeting in April 2009 approved the principle of a Deputy Chief Executive to:
	43.	EHCC, subsequently agreed that the future challenges post-Covid would focus heavily on two key strands; ensuring the continued highly performing services are maintained for the residents of Hampshire; and secondly, increasing the focus on the opportunities for sustainable Economic Growth.  To this end it was agreed that two Deputy Chief Executive roles would be created, one predominantly facing inwards and the second to be predominantly outwards facing.
	44.	Following this decision however, the Chairperson of EHCC and the Leader of the Council agreed to an amended approach to the Deputy Chief Executive role due to the unforeseen personal circumstances of the Chief Executive.  These alternative arrangements consisted of both the Director of Adults Health and Care and the Director of Children’s Services sharing the Deputy Chief Executive responsibilities, rotating on a quarterly basis, for a period of 1 year from 1 September 2021.
	45.	The arrangements put in place from 1 September 2021 have proved to be very successful, with both Directors fulfilling the responsibilities of Deputy Chief Executive to an incredibly high standard.  To this end the Chief Executive has discussed with the Leader of the Council an extension of these arrangements to 30 September 2023 with the Director of Adults Health and Care covering the first 6 months to 31 March 2023 and the Director of Children’s Services covering the second half of the year.
	46.	EHCC are asked to note these arrangements.
	Outstanding National Consultations and Government responses
	47.	The Queen’s speech in May 2022 made no direct reference to any employment legislation related reforms. There are several outstanding consultations that have been referenced in previous EHCC papers on which there are no further updates at this time. Appendix 7 contains a high-level summary.
	Consultation and Equalities
	48.	It is not envisaged that an Equalities Impact Assessment will be required for any of the updates included in this paper.
	Climate Change Impact Assessment
	49.	Hampshire County Council utilises two decision-making tools to assess the carbon emissions and resilience impacts of its projects and decisions.  These tools provide a clear, robust, and transparent way of assessing how projects, policies and initiatives contribute towards the County Council’s climate change targets of being carbon neutral and resilient to the impacts of a 2℃ temperature rise by 2050. This process ensures that climate change considerations are built into everything the Authority does.
	Climate Change Adaptation and Carbon Mitigation
	50.	The carbon mitigation tool and climate change adaptation tools were not applicable on this occasion because the decision relates to a programme that is strategic/administrative in nature.
	Conclusions
	51.	The April 2021 pay award was implemented in March 2022 payroll, backdated to 1 April 2021.
	52.	The recommendations in this paper will provide authority to implement the pay award for Grades H and above, where certain conditions described in paragraph 16 are met. This will prevent any unnecessary delays to consulting on and subsequently paying the award once the national position on the pay award is settled.
	53.	The recommendations in this paper will ensure that the Council is compliant with the Statutory Guidance on Special Severance Payments, ensuring continued appropriate scrutiny of severance packages
	54.	Monitoring consultations and announcements on legislative changes or new requirements will allow adjustments to policies and business processes to be implemented and therefore continued compliance.

	REQUIRED CORPORATE AND LEGAL INFORMATION:
	Links to the Strategic Plan
	Other Significant Links
	EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT:
	55.	Equality Duty
	The County Council has a duty under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 (‘the Act’) to have due regard in the exercise of its functions to the need to:
	-	Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other conduct prohibited by or under the Act with regard to the protected characteristics as set out in section 4 of the Act (age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation);
	-	Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation) and those who do not share it;
	-	Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (see above) and persons who do not share it.
	Due regard in this context involves having due regard in particular to:
	-	The need to remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic;
	-	Take steps to meet the needs of persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share it;
	-	Encourage persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic to participate in public life or in any other activity in which participation by such persons is disproportionally low.

	56.	Equalities Impact Assessment:
	It is not envisaged that an Equalities Impact Assessment will be required for any of the updates included in this paper


	Appendix 1 - CX Recruitment Process via search agency
	Appendix 2 - CO and Deputy CO Recruitment Process via search agency
	Appendix 3 - CO and Deputy CO  Recruitment Process - External Advert no search agency
	Appendix 4 - CO and Deputy CO recruitment process via internal advert
	Appendix 5 - CO and Deputy CO Recruitment Process - Interim to Permanent - no advert
	Appendix 6 -  CO and Deputy CO  Recruitment Process - via and Interim Acting up arrangement to CO or DCO
	Appendix 7 - Summary of outstanding government consultations
	1.	The government consulted between December 2021 and April 2022.  This consultation sought evidence of current practice by employers and views on the potential for mandatory disability workforce reporting. The Council already voluntarily reports disability workforce data though the Annual Workforce Report.
	Making Flexible Working the Default

	2.	The government consulted between September and December 2021 seeking views on several proposed changes to regulations that provide the statutory right to request flexible working. The consultation is asked questions on the following:
		The impact of allowing all UK employees to request a flexible working arrangement from day one with their employer
		Whether the list of reasons an employer can refuse a request are still valid
		Requiring an employer to demonstrate that they have considered alternatives to the request, rather than a simple refusal
		The frequency with which employees can request to work flexibly (currently limited to once in a 12-month period) and how fast employers need to respond to such a request

	3.	The Council recently introduced an Open Workplace Policy that sets out how managers and employees can reap the benefits of working flexibly in roles where this can be accommodated. The Open Workplace policy is in addition to the Council’s Right to Request Flexible Working policy, which is a statutory requirement. Several of the proposals in the consultation would necessitate a change to the Councils’ Right to Request Flexible Working policy if legislation is amended.
	Ethnicity Pay Gap Reporting

	4.	The government consulted between October 2018 and January 2019, seeking views on what ethnicity pay information should be reported to allow meaningful action in this area.
	5.	The government is yet to formally respond to this consultation, however the government responded in March 2022 to the Commission on Race and Ethnic Disparities. This response recognised that reporting on ethnicity will need to be very different to gender reporting, which uses just 2 categories and would therefore be more complex for organisations to implement. The government are expecting to publish guidance to employers on voluntary ethnicity pay gap reporting in Summer 2022.
	Measures taken to address one-sided flexibility

	6.	The government consulted between July 2019 and October 2019 in relation to measures to address “one-sided flexibility”.  This consultation sought views on introducing new rights for workers to be given reasonable notice of their working hours and to be compensated where their shifts are cancelled or curtailed without reasonable notice.
	Exit Payment Reform
	7.	There are several potential reforms in this area, in addition to the statutory Special Severance Payment guidance issued in May 2022, as described in the main body of this report.
	8.	The consultation on ‘public sector exit payment recovery regulations’ opened in December 2015 and closed in January 2016. Government are yet to respond. This consultation sought views on the requirement to repay exit payments on a sliding scale if;
		an employee left with an exit package, and
		they had a salary of £80k or more, and
		they re-entered a public sector employment within 12 months of leaving

	9.	The consultation on ‘reforming local government exit pay’ concluded in November 2020 and involved proposals that would
		restrict the number of weeks’ pay that could be paid to individuals when they exit a local government employer
		place a cap on the value of a weeks’ salary that could be used in making exit payments
		place a cap on the total value of exit payments that could be made – to £95k.

	10.	Proposals in this consultation could necessitate changes to the Enhanced Voluntary Redundancy scheme currently in use in the Council, the extension of which was approved by EHCC in March 2022.
	11.	In November 2020, new regulations were introduced that capped the value of exit payments to £95k, as proposed in the consultation described in paragraph 9. However, in February 2021 these regulations were revoked. This followed an extensive review that the cap may have had unintended consequences.
	12.	While there is no formal consultation open on the £95k cap, the consultation described in paragraph 9 remains open. In addition, local authorities were required to report exit payment data from 2016 onwards and are now required to report this as part of the annual accounts. It is understood that further announcements on exit payment reform are to be expected, however there are no known timescales.





